Alan Richard Coon Telephone
Secretary (209) 601-9624

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2044
400 E. Kettleman Lane, Suite 20-K
Lodi, CA 95240

AGENDA

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at 1:30 p.m. on July 22, 2025, the Board of Trustees of
Reclamation District No. 2044 will meet at the Law Offices of Alan Richard Coon in the Conference
Room at Clear Suites located at 400 E Kettleman Lane, Lodi, California, 95240. The Board reserves
the right to advance items or consider matters out of order including the Engineer Report and
presentations for Solar Project.

1. Public Comment: Public comments are to begin promptly at 8:30 a.m. for matters related to the
District’s business. Public comments on agenda items will be limited to 5 minutes at the discretion of
the Board. Public comments are only permitted at the start of meeting and may address information
and action items.

2. Manager’s Report: Manager Celli will provide an overall update of the status report on levees,
recent chip-seal at King Island Marina location and proposed chip seal on northeast levee, pumps,
vegetation and rodent control and current encroachments. Manager may also discuss future repairs
of “critical” and “serious” levee sites during this report and/or during the Engineer’s Report, infra.

3. Secretary’s Report: Updates on the following: Proposed changes to the Water Reporting for
landowners; Solar Project (see Action Item below) including Direct Pay/Infrastructure Act legislative
changes; and on the Subventions Program (may be covered under the Manager’s Report, supra, and
by Engineers Report, infra). The secretary will discuss miscellaneous financial documents (see
attached List of Warrants, Profit and Loss Ledger) and Draft Working Budget for discussion and
Action, infra. Secretary may present an updated Solar Project proposal to address option should
there be a loss of tax Credits under the Direct Pay Program which might be affected by recent
passage of federal legislation. Finally, discussion will be had procuring of Secretary and General
Counsel following the announced retirement of Alan Coon, current Secretary and General Counsel
including scheduling interviews asap as Secretary/General Coon'’s last day is Oct. 1, 2025.

4. Engineer’s Report: Please see June 2024 Engineer’s Report incorporated herein by reference.
A representative of MBK Engineers may attend in person or via ZOOM.

5. Action Item(s): NOTE: The Board may consider and discuss all Action Items before universal
Motion to Table, Approve or Reject any or all Action ltems.

A. Approval of Minutes and/or Revised Minutes of Meeting held on February 25, 2025 (please
see attached);



6.

B. Authorize, approve and/or ratify payment of insurance premium for 2025-2026; which may
include an updated premium that includes proposed insurance for Solar Project;

C. Action to approve Draft Working Budget and discussion regarding future assessments for
2025-2026;

D. Consideration and Action authorizing execution of Purchase and Sale Agreement, revisions
to Solar Project with direction and authorization recognizing unknown impact (timing, American
made, prevailing wage) of federal legislation on Direct Pay Program under the Infrastructure
Act and also authorizing selection of Scwartz Giannini to file forms with IRS upon completion of
solar project;

E. Consideration and Ratifying Action regarding the procurement and payment of surveyor;

F. Consideration and Action regarding the purchase of parcel related to the Solar Project and
opening of escrow. Copies of the Purchase Sale Agreement, Grant Deed and Deed
Restrictions are attached. Note: Requested approval also for similar County approved Deed
Restrictions for the Honker Cut Matina Parcel (PG&E Pole/Easement);

F. Consideration and Action to procure (a) Secretary and (b) General Counsel including, but
not limited to Board interviews and background checks;

G. Consideration and Action to approve procurement and work under the Subvention Program
including (i) 2025-2026 regular maintenance; and (ii) addressing Serious and Critical Sites;

H. Consideration and Action on those items presented by District’'s Engineers, MBK Engineers,
in the Engineer’s Report, supra.;

and

|. Consider action to approve engagement of Schwartz Gianninini et al to prepare audit for FY
2024-2025 fiscal year and preparation and filing of forms for the Direct Pay Program (Solar
Project Tac Credits).

Closed Session: (a) Negotiations and Authority for purchase of Foppiano (or named designee)

Parcel, revisions to Solar Project and procurement of financing for said Solar Project.

7.

Informational Items: (a) New Water Rights Reporting System is coming. See

www.waterboards.ca.gov/upward/calwatrs/# ; (b) Repair on Eight Mile Road Bridge over Honker Cut

with Phase 2 Construction from Oct. 1, 2025, through Jan. 31, 2026; (c) Our accounting firm will file
IRS forms for Direct Pay Program; (d) Future Solar Project will require listing Bank of Stockton as
“‘lienholder or Loss Payee”; and (e) Status of AB 942 (Solar Bill pending).

8.

Adjournment:

C AL T O .
Dated: July 16, 2024 e Y

Alan Richard Coon, Secretary
Reclamation District No. 2044


http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/upward/calwatrs/

Notes:

Persons needing disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting should
contact the Secretary of the Board at (209) 601-9624 at least 48 hours prior to the start of the meeting.
[Government Code §54954.2(a)]

The Agenda Package material may be reviewed at the Main Office of Reclamation District #2029
(“District”), 400 E Kettleman Lane, Suite 20-K, Lodi, CA 95240, during normal business hours. Please
contact the office in writing to obtain a copy of the Agenda Package. Persons requesting a copy may
be charged a small fee for copying the Agenda Package.

The time limit within which to commence any lawsuit or legal challen%e to any quasi-adjudicative
decision made by the district is governed by §1094.6 of the Code of Civil Procedure, unless a shorter
limitations period is specified by any other provision. Under §1094.6, any lawsuit or legal challenge to
any quasi-adjudicative decision made by the district must be filed no latér than the 90th day following
the date on which such decision becomes final. Any lawsuit or legal challenge, which is not filed within
that 90-day period, will be barred. Persons wishing to challenge the nature of the above section in
court may be limited to raising only those issues that were raised at the meeting described in this
notice, or in written correspondence delivered to the district at or prior to the meetlnﬁ. In addition,
judicial challenge may be limited or barred where the interested party has not sought and exhausted
all available administrative remedies.



SECRETARY’S REPORT

List of Warrants
Profit and Loss Ledger
Draft Working Budget

Page 4



4/29/2025 236| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
6/3/2025 237| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
6/3/2025 238| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
6/3/2025 239| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
6/11/2025 240| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
$ 690,000.00
6/11/2025 241| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 242| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 243| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 244 $ 5,000.00 5.50%
717/2025 245| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 246| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 247| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
71712025 248| $ 5,000.00 5.50%
$ 730,000.00

Page 5



BANK OF STOCKTON

WARRANT LIST
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044

10/14/2024 205 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

10/14/2024 206 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

10/14/2024 207 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

10/14/2024 208 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

10/14/2024 209 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

10/14/2024)] 210 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
11/7/2024| 211 $ 10,000.00
11/7/2024) 212 S 10,000.00
11/7/2024| 213 $ 10,000.00
11/7/2024 214 $ 5,000.00
13/7/2024, 235 S 5,000.00
11/7/2024, 216 $ 10,000.00
11/7/2024| 217 $ 10,000.00
| 14/7/2024 218 $ 5,000.00
11/7/2024 219 $ 5,000.00
11/7/2024 220 $ 10,000.00
1 )7/2024 221 S 10,000.00
11/7/2024 222 S 10,000.00
]
11/7/2024 223 $  10,000.00 |
11/7/2024 224 $ 5,000.00
12/10/2024 225 $ 10,000.00
1/1/2025 226 S 10,000.00
| /172025 227 $  10,000.00
2/6/2025 228 S 10,000.00 !
2/6/2025 229 $ 10,000.00
2/24/2025 230 S 5,000.00 |
2/24/2025 231 $ 5,000.00
4/7/2025 232 $ 5,000.00
A/7/2025' 233 S 5,000.00
4/7/2025 234 S 5,000.00 |
4/29/2025 235 $ 5,000.00 |

Page 6




BANK OF STOCKTON

WARRANT LIST
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044

9/13/2024 168 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 169 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 170 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 171 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 172 g 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 173 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 174 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 175 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024/ 176 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 177 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/1i3/2024/ 178 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 179 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024. 180 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024, 181 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 182 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 183 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/i3/2024| 184 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| i85 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/33/2024] 186 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024/ 187 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 188 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 189 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024, 190 K 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024] 191 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 192 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
a/13/2024 193 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024| 194 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024] 195 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14/2024, 196 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14/2024 197 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14/2024) 198 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
10/14/2024] 199 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14/2024, 200 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14,/2024) 201 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
10/14/2024] 202 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
10/14/2024| 203 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
10/34/2024] 204 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%




BANK OF STOCKTON

WARRANT LIST
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044

9/13/2024 131 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 132 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 133 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 134 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 135 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 136 3 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 137 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 138 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 139 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 140 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 141 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 142 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 143 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 144 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 145 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 146 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 147 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 148 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 149 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 150 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 151 3 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024, 152 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024) 153 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 154 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/33/2024] 155 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 156 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| i57 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 158 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 159 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024| 160 g 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 161 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024 162 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 163 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/i3/2024| 164 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 165 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 166 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024] 167 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

Page 8




BANK OF STOCKTON
WARRANT LIST
RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044

Date Warrant Number | Amount Interest | Interest paid Date Paid
9/13/2024 100 $  50,000.00 | 5.50%|$ 911.64 1/15/2025
9/13/2024 101 $  50,000.00 | 5.50%|$ 911.64 1/15/2025
9/13/2024 102 $  50,000.00 | 5.50%|$ 1,122.60 2/12/2025
9/13/2024 103 $ 5000000 | 5.50%]$ 1,122.60 2/12/2025

$  200,000.00 $ 4,068.48
9/13/2024 104 $  50,000.00| 5.50%]|$ 1,876.03 5/22/2025
9/13/2024 105 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/23/2025
9/13/2024 106 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/24/2025
9/13/2024 107 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/25/2025
9/13/2024 108 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/26/2025
9/13/2024 109 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/27/2025
9/13/2024 110 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/28/2025
9/13/2024 111 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/29/2025
9/13/2024 112 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/30/2025
9/13/2024 113 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 5/31/2025
9/13/2024 114 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 6/1/2025
9/13/2024 115 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 6/2/2025
9/13/2024 116 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%| $ 187.60 6/3/2025
9/13/2024 117 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024 118 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 119 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 120 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 121 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 122 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024 123 S 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 124 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 125 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024| 126 $ 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024| 127 S 5,000.00 |  5.50%
9/13/2024 128 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 129 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%
9/13/2024 130 $ 5,000.00 | 5.50%

Page 9




1 39eq

00°'000°s9¢ 00°000°01 “jsuel) e Aj[enide sem SIY[-9€Z-6€T SlueLey,  “ajj0D Xe[-Jaunseds] o) r'S  dle@  $Z0T/€0/50 nsodaqg
00°000°sS€ 00°000°S1 pET-TeT swewrepy  9jo) xe-samseal] o s da@  SZOZ/LI/NVO nsodaq
00°000°0¥€ 00°000°01 usods@ 910D Xe-JaumseaLL 0D ('S  'ded  $TOT/LTL/Z0 nsodoqg
00"000°0€€ 00'000°0T 6TT-8TT Suelieyy  r3fjoD Xel-daansear) 0 S dod  $Z0Z/90/20 usodaqg
0000001 € 00°000'0Z LTT-9TzueLey,  U3[|0D Xe[-Jaanseal) "0 'S rdod  §T0Z/90/10 usodaq
00°000°062 00°000°01 STruelepy,  "UdljoD xel-1awnseasl oD ('S tde@  ¥ToZ/TI/TI usodaq
00°000°082 00°000°S1 [ peT-l11Zsiweuepy 3|0 xe-1ainseal], "0Q ('S  ~dad  vzOT/SI/NI usodaq
00°000°s91 00°000°08 012-961 wsodag -ajj0) xe|-1amseas] 0D r'S  dod  $Z0Z/0Z/01 nsodaQ
00°000°s8 00°000°S 16S [1ueLreM Jsodaq weunepm (s dod  $702/90/60 usodaqg
00'000°08 00°000°02 06S1-L8S [ JIOA 98C] luBLIBA, weuem (S dod  $702/90/60 usoda@
00°000°09 00°000°0¢ $8S1-08S1 sl eueM (S dod  $Z07/S0/80 usodag
00°000°0¢ 00°000°S( 6LSI-LLS] SweLRM weuep (S dod  #T0Z/ET/LO usodaQ
00°000°s 1 00°000°s1 9LSI-pLS] SueLepm weuem (s da@  $20T/80/L0 usodaQ

syueaIEA AJunoy) uinbeop ueg

9L €ST'TE 9L°€STTE SNO3UB[|ISIA |2I0.L
9L°€STTE 20°'s08°'c ""13N0 31 350]9 0} JUNOIIL JBIA ¢ WY J9jsuel ], ypOTH# 10WISIQ uopewie[ddy  do  $T0Z/ST/90 usodaqg
vL'8Y1'8T z0'508°¢- UNOJIE N0 35012 PPOTH# PLASIJ uoljewre[ody  NQd  $TOT/ST/90 pecllle)
oL'€ST'TE 00°00S‘1- Junodoe Suoim Jo 1no juswAed 1jj3) ouln 6T0T WVIISIq uonBWRSY  uell  $TOT/1T/SO NdYD
9L'ESL EE 00°059- 1un0d2e SuoiM Jo Ino JudwAed seiq auelq 620C 0LusIq uoneweddy  “uell  €TOT/1T/S0 NRYD
9L €OV e 00°0LS- SnOJUe[[adsIAl -~ NqIP  $TOT/80/S0 b peltle)
9L EL6'PE LL'YEO'Y **auINIal 10J JPAId B SEM SIYI JUBIUNOIDY HSY ouf stamoIip eag  rded@  $ZOZ/LT/10 usodaq
66'8£6°0¢ 89'769°0€ Junoddyyueq A4 o paso|) vpOT# 0LIsIq uopeure(dsy  da@  vZOT/11/C1 usodaq
eyt 69°¢- ag1eyo jueq jueq SUBYIISIA @ siowre]  NqQsd  $20T/01/T1 ¥oyH
00'0S¢ SLS0L'0E- juegq Al 18 SN pawnjal y99ayo juedq sjueyolA 79 sloule{  Wqa@  vT0T/61/11 pECle)
SL'SS6°0€ SL'S0L0E JunoddY A 1IN0 PISO[I JuLUNOIDE Hse yy0OT# WMISI uoneweddy  dag  ¥Z0Z/SI/I | usodag
00°0SC 65°02¢€ UNod3Y AL IN0 3501 ypOTH# 01USI uolewe(ddy  'ded  $TOT/SI/IL usodaqg
6S°0L- 000 200y A N0 paso[d :dIOA vpOTH# INSIQ Uonewey  dad  HZOT/SI/IL usodaq
6S°0L- 65°0Z¢- JUNOJ2E N0 35010 pPPOTH WMISI uojewre[dsy L1001  $TOT/LO/IT 333yD
00°0SZ 00001~ unosoe mau uadp PPOTH LISIQ UoneWR[dY] 9101 $T0T/91/60 peClie)
00°0S€ 007001 usodaq ysodaq Supuado vT0T/S1/60 usodaqg
00°0S¢ 00°0S¢C “-asudiziug puejs] Sury wWoly JUBWIASINGUIISY pueis; Sty doQ  ¥Z0T/L0/60 nsodaq
000 000 'AIOA  “inosay Jajep jowduniedsd  Mqsd pZ0T/8T/80 JIRYD

m-_oo:s__oom:)_
amoduy

asuadxg owodu] AteuipaQ
duejeyg junowy QWA JwBN wnN Neq AL

Page 10

S e RIS S B TSRS S LW ST == . PRSER

$707 sung ySnoy) poz Anp siseq jeniody
[1e)d( SSOT %9 oI ST/20/L0
PLASI U BWBIIY PPOTH Wd 9¢:v




¢ ddeq

v1°€s8 P1°¢s8

PI'ess p1°€ss 1J0 M S301AIaS uononpold doi)

LL'906VT LL906'VT

LL906'T oro- 1S$ST *au] S1aMmolD) Bija(]

L8'906VT 08'6L6'C TLO0O] "oU[ $19MOID) BYA(]

LO'LT6'IT v EpL'T 19v66 *au] SIaMoID) Bl

£9°€81°61 089 aSiey) ssueuty *ou[ SIamolIo) eljag

£8'9L1°61 YT ESH £7686 *aU[ SIaMoJD elPg

65°€TL'S1 SLSLY LT 68.86 *ou[ SIIMOIN) Bl

I18°L¥T'L 66'S0T‘1 50986 *0U] S19MOID BYjo(

T8'170% 0S'8¥L £LT86 “5U] SI9MOID) B3

TEE6T'S 0€'6 v98L6 "2U] SI19MOID BY3Q

T0'v8T's 01°520°I V£8L6 *au] S19MOID) B3

6°'8sT'Y 911E £€8L6 ‘0U] SIOMOJD Bl

0€°LY6'E 0E°LY6'E 918L6 *au] stemolp BljaQ

00’8 00'8

008 00’8 a8iey) ao1alag

01'69T°1T 01'69Z°12

01°69T°1 T 01'69T'1¢C Ly-bT  991AIag Sulyouq uos pue ouq

9L EST'LIY 9L EST'LIY

00'000°s8€ 00°000°68€

00°000°68¢ 00'000°01 OPT-6£T SHUBLIBA\  ""3[[0D XE[-12.NSBAL], "0D ‘[ 'S

00°000°SLE 00°000°01 8€T LET siuellBA\  ""9[[0D) XB [ ~I9INSBALY, 0D '[ 'S
auejeg Junowy oWl o T aweN

S e
[e)o( s507] 7 3yod
JLISIq uoneweY POz

$301AJ3§ UOHINPOId do1)) [elo],

001 +$TOT/1€/Z1  |ewnof [eldudny
§391A49§ uopdnpotg doi)

s|esjway) |80 |

yresT ST0T/S0/S0 npald
0001 STOT/SO/S0 g
19%66 STOT/LO/EO nd
£0C66 STOT/1¢/10 g
€686 $20T/61/T1 g
68L86 vT0T/80/11 ng
0986 t20T/€T/01 g
€LT86 ¥TOT/1£/80 ng
¥98L6 +T0T/1¢/L0 g
v€8L6 YTOT/OE/LO g
€€8L6 ¥T0T/0¢/LO g
918L6 +TOT/9T/LO g

sjeaquRYy)

aS1eyo yueg [B10]
§20T/8C/T0 YD

aBaeyd yueg

p3fold seday Ajewouy [elo],

L¥¥T vZ0T/S0/60 132
33foaq Jjeday A[ewouy
asuadxy

aWodu[ [B10 ]

sjueLiep, A1uno?) uinbeog ues [e10,

daQ@  $TOT/L1/90 ysodaq
“dad  §20T/S0/90 usodoqg
“wny aneq | odkL

‘'sjseg jensooy
ST/TO/LO
Wd 8¢

Page 11



¢ a8eyg

90°'610°11 90°610°1S1 90UBUSJUIBJA] 994 [BIOL
IS'8IEYY TS '8IEYY JYI0 - SIUBUIUIEI 334 [EI0L
4% 183 44 T§°S6E°vT adid o51eyosip soeday Suneaeoxg Joyoly 'v'd  ¥T-ST $TOT/6T/90 g
00°€26°61 00°€ZE°1 feaouisy aai], 08¢€I "ouf sayduey I[[3D 08€1 STOT/V0/90 mg
00°009°81 00°002°9 vJo T 69t 11 sesudiayuy 1Seig 69¢ STOT/10/%0 g
00°00¥°C1 00°00Z°9 LS¢ D711 sesudiayuy 13e1§ LSE ST0T/10/10 n4a
00°00Z°9 00°00Z°9 viody JT1sesudisug 18eis  pIoy  HTOZ/EL/01 g
JIYIO - DUBUIIUIBI 394
00°€ZE°l 00°€TE‘1 [013U00 JU3POY [BIOL
00°€2€'1 00°€Z€°| 6LE Ul SOYIURY B 6LEI  STOT/HO/90 g
1043U0d JUIpoYy
PSLLE'SOI yS'LLE'SOI Jreday 99Aa [RI0L
ySLLE'SOL 99'801°001 108f0ud seday uoisorq “auf “"0D uondNUsSUC) VISV $2€9  ¥T0T/1¢/80 g
88'897°¢S 88°89Z°S uonusiay *3u] 0D uoYINAISUO) VLSV PTL9  ¥T0T/1¢/80 ing
Jdiedayg aaAa
3DUBUIJUIBL 39A]
00°€66'P1 00°€66°v1 asueInsuj [e10
00°€66'v1 00°€66°v1 ¥20C-C0C dueInsU umoug 7p umolg  “'yZ0T  #TOT/1¢/L0 g
JdueInsuy
os'IvIee- oS Iv1'ce- ue[g Jea ) Al [BIO]
0S"1¥1°CE- £6°LIv'E- Juowked yse]  “unosay Jaem Jo jusumedog  do  §20Z/61/50 usodaQg
LS ETL'8T- LS'8SH'T- 300AUI G N0SIY JAIEM JO Wautedoq  mdod  $Z0T/YT/Z0 nsodaq
00'$92°92- 00°S92°9- “"3DIOA JRJSUBLL HD 404 -~ (D JO SIANY ueld 194 AL A PZOTLI/NL  [PUMOf [212UID
uB|g 183§ ALY
Jouejeg " yunowy T WAl T T omeNy “wny aeqg odky

Page 12

e R T A - s = [l R SRR TEE B

§70Z dunp yBnoay) yZog Ainp
[1e33(] SSO'] 79 dujoad
SI(] UONBWEIIY PFOTH

s|seg JenJooy
ST/TO/LO
WNd 9¢:v



$ a8eq

™
<
67'99 6299 sayjddns aaujo jer0L o
67'99% 0s°ee S Paaypaxnppg  UGxq $T0T/91/0t 393D Dnm
6L’ Ty 0S¢ $3I3Yd mau FR/YD XN UGA  YT0T/YT/60 3}y
67°66€ 62°66€ SHUBLIY M\ MON aolAleg Jupuud pazijedads  pEY9  4T0T/T0/60 g
sayddng aa1130
geriLe'stl gerLessel asuadxg snoaue[jaosIjAl {10,
89'9LT°STI 89'9LZ°STI JayQ - asuadxy snoaue|[si|l [210 L
89°9LT°STI 89'v69°0¢ JuN0o3IE N0 35010 PrOTH# WLUSI(J uoheweddYy  868T ¥TOT/TI/TI 934D
00°Z85'v6 00°Z8V°v6 suonuAqng PPOTH# 0LOSIJ uohewe(day 0987 +T0T/91/60 394D
00001 00°001 1unoade mau usdo PrOT# W0INSIQ uolewe[dy  868C  +¥T0T/91/60 393YD
JYQO - Isuadxy snodue|aIsIAl
S9'v6 $9°v6 P1033Y UOIHI0IS [e10
$9°p6 $9'v6 SONON uoliedtqnd pio33y ayL "TLOI $¥T0T/0£/00 g
PI0INY UNHIIS
asuadxqg snoaueg[jaasiAl
00°005°91 00°005'91 asuadxy |ewaZeuel (@10 ],
00°005°91 00°005°1 aung 12D oudn €91 $202/20/90 9YD
00°000°s1 000 Ael :QIOA 13D ousn 8L1 STOT/6T/PO 34D
00°000°S1 00°00$°1 judy 11133 ouand SSI  ST0Z/0¢/€0 194D
00°00S°€1 00700S°1 yolep 12D oudd Lyl ST0THTTO0 334D
00°000°CI 00°00S'1 Aentqa,| 9D ousnH orl  $20%/20/20 LEEN)
00°005°01 00°005°1 Arenuep RO ouHd g€l §202/90/10 394D
00°000°6 00°00S°1 Jequadag {120 oudd LTl ¥T0T/60/C1 334D
00°00S°L 00°005°( 13QUIBAON 1[[2D ousH 8II  vT0T/LO/TI ¥34D
00°000°9 00°00S"1 12010 If[20 ousn ot veoeel/ol 34D
00°005‘y 00°005°1 3quiaydag HROouH  ¢S8C HTOT/TO/60 134D
00'000°c 00°005°! sndny MeOowyn  ¥¥8C HTOT/¥0/80 YD
00°00S‘1 00°00S°1 AIng HiIRDoudH  $¢8C HTOT/80/LO 194D
asuadxy er1o8suey
2upjeg Cyuwomy  Tomew T 7 CaweN 0wy g Toadsy
T "sz0z 2unp yBnoayy pog Aing N siseg |ensooy
1839 SSOY 79 11JOd g ST/TO/LO

M3SIQ uopBWE[Y FPOTH Wd 9¢:v



G a8egq

0S"08L'bS 0S°08L'YS

05°08L'YS SL'8IS'S IvsLl
SL'19T'6Y SL'6SE'E OEELL
00°206'sk $8°L06°0 $8691
S1'766'8¢ §L'580°¢ 8£991
0¥'806'S€ ST9Y9 98+91
47413 0§°S£0'C vEI9l
§9'97T'¢€ $0°T10'S 08661
09°v1T'8C 01°82s°€ 0€LSI
05989'vC S1'p98'Y POEST
SE'TTR'61 1696811 8781
¥8'5TT'8 PELIS'Y 156v1
05°80%'1 0S°80b°1 65LY1
IVvev'e v vEv'e

1rpEp'e IvpveEv'e 62LS1
00°0 00°0

00°0 SL'9TI'Y- €991 SI2I0AUI HF AWISINQUIAL KUno)
SL'9TI'Y $T910°] H6€€9|
0§°0L1'E 0s°0L1€ ue|d uolie1adQ AouaBiowg OgeL
00°0€T'S 00°0£T'S

00°0£T'S A

00°0€C'S 00°0€1 56601
00°001°S 00°001°S upny
- uejeqg J.:lv__‘_.v.sl_._—._a«,\_ii. - o.:._oelam. o - T

ER SIS T

§Z0T duny y3nou

¥ pZ0T Sing

SurisauiSug suonuaAqng 2101,

AN TPSLI  €TOT/81/90 g
AN 0€ELL  $TOT/0T/SO ng
DN €8691  STOT/LY/YO lnd
AGN 8€991 €TOT/E1/€0 g
AN 98¥91  STOT/IT/TO g
AN VEI9L  STOT/TT/I0 g
AN 086S1 $T0T/61/TI ind
A 0€LS1  $TOT/61/1I nd
AN POEST  $TOT/LI/0IL g
AN 8CTSI  $T0Z/0T/60 g
9N 1s6bl  ¥T0T/91/80 litd
AGN 6SLYPI  ¥TOT/61/L0 litd

SupidouiBuy suonjuaaqng

SuplesuiSug [elrauan (w0,
AGIN 6TLS1  ¥TOT/61/11 g

Bupiaouiduyg jvasuan

g Mg

ue|d uoneradp AsusSiowg e30]

"3J|0D XeL-1ainsealf '0) r°s  dad  $T0Z/S0/90 usodoq
NG €991 STOT/SO/SO [if:}
NG 98691 $T0Z/SO/SO g

ueld uoneradg Lduadiomy
$331A19§ ButlazuiBuy

$301A198 SunUNOJOY BI04,

ouj ‘e 19 ‘juruuern) ‘zuemyos jelo],

[B 19 “TUjuuBlD ‘ZUBMYdS  pTOI  STOT/IE/10 g
[8 10 ‘luURLD ZMEMYDS  ULIOL  $TOT/S1/60 g
Uy ‘8 19 quinueln) ‘zpaemips
$391A198 Supunoday
$991AIIG [EUOISSIIOI Y
aweN woy e adL

[1eseq $SO 79 3YOig
PLISIQ uojIBWIB[NY pYOTH

Page 14

s|segq jendooy

STTO/LO
Wd 9€y



993eg

00°STT'L 00°sTT°L
00's2Z°L 00°059
00°SLS‘9 00°0
00°SLS*9 00059
00°S26°S 00°059
00°SLT'S 00°0S9
00°S29'y 007059
00°SL6°E 00°059
00°SZE'E 00°0¢9
00°SL9°T 00°059
00°'$20°C 00°S2L
00°00€°1 007059
00°059 00°059
78°978°C¢ 78'978°C¢
78'978°CE 78°978°C¢
78'978°CE 00°800°L
78'818'sT ¥L'801°L
80°01L°81 00°9¢1°S
80°bLS €l 00°849°9
80°926°9 80°9269
81 €L9°09 8¥°€L9°09
8" €L9°09 8¥°€L9°09
LS'8SH'T LS'8SY'T
LS'8SH'T LS'8SH'T
Jurjeg ukowy

i L ESTS gl

*** 30 JuatuAed 10j JuNOIOE [LIOUIT JuISIIGLIL

aung
Aey :dIOA

ndy

Yose|

Kreniqad

Kenuey

JaquisdaQg

JaQUIdAON

1990120

daag npny pue Joquandag
1sn3ny

Ang

aunr ysnosyp (udy | L
Yode Uy uef Gg/
19qWana( - 13030 | €L
Joquiadag - A|nf L
pzoz aung - [Ldy 0zL

o

S0 2unf ydnoaiy) peyc b__.u...
[1esaq ssoY 7 5504d
PLISIF UonBWIBY PPOTH

sei( auelq
seiq aueld
selq suelq
seI(] aueiq
seig aueiq
seiq aueiq
serq aueiq
selqg auelq
seig auelq
selq auelq
seiq auelq
selq auelq

uoo0) "y ue|y
u00)) Y uely
uoo) "y uejy
uo0)) Yy uely
uoo) "y uely

VPOTiH 19181 UoBEWIR[IYY

dweN

(e}

<~

()

[BlIBIAI0AS [B1OL w

91 $20T/20/90 234D o
6L1 STOT/6T/V0 3YD
961 €T0T/0L/€0 94D
8l STOTVTL/TO 134D
I¥l  §T0T/T0/20 30340
vel  $T0T/90/10 YD
8Tl  ¥20T/80/T1 YD
LIl ¥T0T/LO/T ] ¥o940
I veorei/ol Py
vS8T  ¥T0T/20/60 934D
SY8T ¥T0T/¥0/80 334D
S€8T ¥T0T/80/LO 03y

[BI1B)2IIIS

$391A19g {8527 (10 L

uo0o0)) Y Uejy [eo],

Iyl §T0T/6C/90 g

SEL  §TOT/90/¥0 litd

1€L  STOT/10/T0 nd

vl vT0T/80/T1 litd

0ZL ¥T0T/50/80 1td
uoo) Y uejy

$3JAI9S |88
$ad1Alag SurtouiBuy jeio |
oup “SA [BI0L

13410 - o] AW [8I0L

201 $TOT/EL/TO Lele)
Jo3Q - dul ‘NG
wnN  aeg adkL

siseg |enJaoy
§T/T0/L0
INd 8¢V



L33eg

SHol s¥'91 931eyD 301AISS [BI0L
S¥91 69'S aduey) 90lAlRg §T0z/11/10 poclie)
9L01 1Y ad1eyD a0iAleg ¥20Z/11/21 L pCle)
8¢'¢ 8¢S oBseyD s01AleSg veoz/ii/m %9340
aBaryD dIALIg
0£'610°8 0£°610°8 aoueUBIUIBIA/1EdY (10,
0£'610°8 0£'610'8 uone[eIsul AjeH |20,
0£'610°8 0£'610°8 8LEl ouf sayouey 113 8LEL  STOT/P0/90 nd
uone|jBIsul e
asususjurey/aeday
00°001- 00°001- sajouedalasiq uonel[19u0aYy [BI0L
00°001- 00°001- Juaunsnlpy sduejeg ¥20T/0€/60  ewinof [eJ3uah
sarpuedalds|q uonelIIu0IIY
TLELIYIT TLELIIT tredoy dwng [el0]
TLELI‘IT TlroLy'el SETIVTOT '] “@dIAla8 [I9 M Jo1eM A2qqY  "HTOT  $TOT/S0/60 [{14:]
09°L69° 09'619 £928I SWAISAS JoJB M SUBULIOON  €9Z81 $TOT/TT/LO g
00'8L0°l 00'8L0°1 698YT0T "I “O0IAIBS [|oM JateM A3qqY  pTOT  $TOT/61/LO g
Jreday dwing
0£'$90°901 0£'$90°901 $90IAISS JRUOISS3JO1d {810
00011 00011 JOYIQ - S3IIAISG JBUOISS3JOI ] |10 ],
00011 00°'sS 1unsod Aajim aney 07/T $T0T/0T/20 liid
00'sS 00'sS SI/L1 11/11 Sunsod Aot aney  00°S91  ZOT/S1/1) 1}e:|
J9Y)O - SINAJIIG [BUOISSIOLJ
Jsusjeg yunowry OWIdIAl ameN wnN Neq adLy,

$707 aung y3noays pzog Ainp

g OSBRI, L W oS ST M T TP T SO T S, |

sjseg [enJooy
STTO/L0
Nd 9¢:¥

[rejaq ssoq ¥ jjoad
WIS uoljeweRY pHOTH

Page 16



g a3eg

95'L6T'89 9¢°L6T'89 sauynfN w0,
S9°LTI‘6S §9°LTI‘6S 32904 |8l0],
S9°LTI'6S $9LTI6S L-181€TT80CI [B100
S9'LTI‘6S 6T L86°E 80T1 a%0d 80Tl STOT/1T/V0 ind
9€°0F1°sS £1'6SE'S 80C1 H%®Dd 8071 STOT/LT/E0 Iitd
€T I8L6Y TEBI0°11 80CI1 4%Dd  80TI $T0Z/0T/20 g
16'79L°8€ 86°L0€"9 80C1 a®dd  80Z1 STOZ/1T/10 e
€E'SSPTE v0'6L8°S 80C1 d%5d 8071 ¥$20T/0T/C1 mng
62'9LS 9T 88°6ZC'Y 80¢I1 a»od 80Tl +T0T/6l1/11 g
vOIPobETe $0'986'C 8071 d%5d  80T1 +T0T/12/01 litd
9£'09¢°61 87°€95'8 80¢! 4%9d 8071 ¥T0T/1T/80 iid
80°L6L01 80°L6L°01 8071 a%0d  80C1 vTOT/TTLO g
L-181€TT8OTI
A®0d
16'691°6 16'691°6 S-LYLLYYSESI [BI0L
16'691°6 90°¥S€ cesl d%Dd  SE81 STOT/LT/SO nd
$8'518°8 96°9C ce8l d%0d  S€81 STOT/LT/L0 g
6T°68L°8 LY'LT Se8l a¥Dd S8l ST0T/8T/TO0 ng
T8'19L°8 0€°6¢ cesl 4%Dd  s€81  STOT/LT/10 fi'd
TSTEL'S 6€°8C S8l d%0d  S€81 ¥TOT/9T/TI g
£I'pOL'S 6¢8¢ Se8l d®Dd  Se€81 YTOT/STIIL g
vL'SLY‘S 10°162 sesl a%0d €8l ¥T0T/ST/0I nd
£L°p8¢E’8 Ly'Le Se8l d%0d  S€81 $T0T/6T/60 g
97'LSE'S £€'806°0 80c1 3%0d  80T1 ¥TOT/0T/60 113
£6'8h¥°l 61°669 cesl a%0d  S€81 $T0T/LT/R0 . li'd
vL6vL vL6vL Sesl I%0d S8l ¥T0T/6T/LO g
S-LPLLYPSER]
saplnn
ue[eqg Jjunowy OWAAl ey wnN g adL

$707 aung ySnoays pzog Ainp
[ejeq 5507 3 youg
11151 UOPBWBIIY pHOTH

s|Seg jen1ooy
STTO/LO
Wd 98¢t

Page 17



69984

99°901°Z11~ 99°901°711- awoduj 3N
99'901°C11- 99°901°C11- awoou] AreupiQ 19N
Tr09£°6TS Zr'09€°6TS asuadxq [e10],
06'TY9°‘C 06'T¥9°C SYSRY Jojep [BI0L
06'TY9°C 06'T¥9°C "€651TL8Z00T " d pue xe[ jojuswpedod v  *T00T  HTOT/PI/II g
SH3RY J038M
uejeyg junowy OWDAI aureN wnp Ne(q adKy,

§207 ung ysnoay pzoz Ainp
[te)aq ssoY p IPoIg
PUISI uopew e proTH

s|seg [En1ooy
STTO/LO
Wd 9¢p

Page 18



RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044
2025-2026
{Working Budget)

DESCRIPTION 2022-2023 2022-2023 Actuals | 2023-24 Actual 2024-2025 2024-25 Actual 2025-2026
SUBVENTIONS PAYMENT (Cost Share)
EXPENDITURES
Administrative
Accounting Services S 3,750.00 | $ 4,256.25 | § 4,735.00 | $ 5,500.00 S 5,600.00
Manager S 18,000.00 | $ 18,000.00 | $ 16,500.00 | $ 18,000.00 | $ 16,500.00 | S 18,000.00
Secretarial $ 6,800.00 | $ 7,625.00 | S 7,279.49 | § 8,000.00 | S 7,225.00 | thd
Total Insurance TBD (See *) $ 12,000.00 | $ 11,109.00 | $ 11,316.00 | $ 12,000.00 | $ 14,993.00 | $ 19,000.00
Legal and Professional (See **) S 18,000.00 | $ 24,159.00 | $ 16,263.52 | § 21,000.00 | $ 32,826.82 | $ 21,000.00
Annual Memberships CSDA S 550.00 | $ 592.50 S 600.00
Publication S 300.00 | $ 45.00 | $ 562.00 | S 250.00 | $ 94.65 | $ 500.00
Supplies and Postage S 500.00 | $ 283.55 S 400.00 | $ 446.29 | $ 400.00
Bank Service Charge S 200.00 | $ 43.48 | $ 2,246.80 | $ 240.00 | S 8.00
Katie Wiley - website S 200.00 | S 300.00
$  60,100.00 | § 66,113.78 | § 59,102.81 | § 66,290.00
MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS
ENGINEERING
General Engineering 5 5,000.00 | $ 1,360.88 S 3,000.00 | § 3,43441 | S 4,000.00
Subventions *** S 25,000.00 | § 60,474.75 | $ 34,240.32 | $ 15,000.00 | $ 60,673.48 | $ 60,000.00
Five Year Plan Engineering S - S 206.25 S 5,876.50 | $ B
King Istand S 3,500.00
Miscellaneous
Water Rights S 1,924.00 | $ 2,325.40 | S 2,382.72 | $ 3,000.00
Excavating/Emergency Contingency
KI Erosion Repair S 18,388.00
Special Project
Materials & Supplies
Utilities *** $  50,000.00 | $ 88,140.43 | S 58,029.39 | $ 70,000.00 | $ 68,297.56 | $ 85,000.00
Chemicals S 18,000.00 | $ 25,731.00 | $ 11,841.78 | S 20,000.00 | $ 24,906.77 | S 28,000.00
EMERGENCY WORK $ 66,217.16 | $ 900.00 | § 5,000.00
REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE
FTG Construction
1DS Backhoe S 900.00
Johnson Electric S 10,000.00
D A Archer S 4764250 | $ 20,000.00
Larry's Tree
Asta Construction $  15,000.00 S 114,377.22
Rodent Control S 4,500.00 S 190.72 | $§ 3,000.00
Ditch Maintenance and Canal Cleaning
STAGI enterprises $  24,600.00 | $ 37,791.00 | $ 24,800.00
PUMP REPAIR S 5,000.00 S 51,640.27
$ 167,762.00 | § 282,246.87 | $ 346,044.92 | $ 154,000.00
S 210,290.00
WARRANTS
Outstanding Warrants
Payments on Warrants
Interest paid on Warrants
RESERVES
Reserves for Future Outlay
Emergency
TOTAL EXPENDITURES
INCOME (Receipts)
Assessment
Page 1 Page 19




RECLAMATION DISTRICT 2044

2025-2026
(Working Budget)

DESCRIPTION 2022-2023 2022-2023 Actuals | 2023-24 Actual 2024-2025 2024-25 Actual 2025-2026
Landowners***** $ 133,173.00 | $ 146,410.28 | $ 158,194.38 | $ 170,805.79 | § 170,805.79 | $ 170,805.79
City Stockton + 3% cpi add for 2025-26 | §  49,292.00 | $ 43,536.00 | $ 46,279.81 | § 47,575.86 | § 47,575.86 | $ 49,003.14
State Assistance
Insurance payments
Interest Income

TOTAL iINCOME $ 182,465.00 | $ 189,946.28 | $ 204,474.19 $ 217,745.90 | $ 219,808.93

Otes: Approximateryly 10 assessabie

acres.

[Assessments can also DE mcreased based
upon 2023 CPI| estimated 2.8% for an

* Includes Est. for Solar Construction

** | egal Services includes 5 quarters

*** o \bv. Engineering 75% Reimbursement

**** 11 Mos. Solar Project will impact

**%*¥ Prasymes No Cpi increase

Page 2

Page 20




MBK SITE REVIEW

Page 21



Don Trieu, P.E.
DarReN CoroovA, PE

NavHan HersHEY, PE PLS.

LeE G. BerGrAID, P.E.

Bex TusTisox, P.E.

Taomas Encier, P.E., CFM
MicrarL MoNCRIEF, P.E.
NicoLE ORTEGA-JEWELL, PMP
KyLE KxuTson, PE.

A VAVAY,
MBKXXAX

ENGIINEERS
Water Resources ® Flood Control ¢ Water Rights

FOUNDERS:

ANGUS NORMAN MURRAY
1913-1985
JosePH 1. BURNS
1926-2021
DoNarD E. KIENLEN
1930-2023

ANNE WILLIAMS, PE.
Parrck Ho, P.E

April 14, 2025

Via Email: recdistrict2044@gmail.com

Mr. Alan Coon, Secretary
Reclamation District No. 2044

400 East Kettleman Lane, Suite 20-K
Lodi, CA 95240

Subject: Reclamation District No. 2044: King Island
Waterside Erosion and Anomalies
2025 Spring Inspection Results

Dear Secretary Coon:

MBK Engineers performed a recent site review on March 21, 2025 with Gino Celli to
follow up on the site review performed November 27, 2024. The intent of the review was to
determine whether additional damage and levee movement is occurring on the waterside of the
King Island levee system.

The recent inspection was performed after a series of rainfall events that have started to
saturate the levees. The natural high tides for the year have come through the Delta without
significantly connecting to the timing of major atmospheric rivers or storm surges.

There are a few areas where a change in conditions at new or deteriorating erosion sites
were identified. Multiple sites were identified that have progressed to Critical or Serious levels
from the list of Monitor sites. See attached map of current Critical and Serious sites.

The Critical sites have to be monitored; these sites are exposed and susceptible to high
energy storm events, and conditions could deteriorate quickly without the repairs needed to
address existing conditions and subsequent impacts. The existing erosion sites deemed as critical
should be repaired as soon as possible, and other existing erosion should be monitored for
changes in condition. Future repairs should be planned for this year to address maintenance and
erosion sites along the levee. A small sole-source project, focusing on sites along the eastern and
northern section of the District, prior to the end of the fiscal year would be advisable while
planning for a large potential project later this summer/fall to address other Critical sites.

The District has an active CDFW LSAA permit that allows sites longer than 100 fee to be
repaired at 22 site locations. While many sites have been addressed in these areas over the last 2

455 University Ave. Suite 100 * Sacramento, California 95825 ¢ Phone: (916) 456-4400 ¢ Fax: (916) 456-0253 ¢ Website: www.mbkengineers.com

Page 22



Mr. Alan Coon, District Secretary April 14, 2025
RD 2044 Waterside Repairs Page 2

years, there is still permit capacity. 16 current Critical sites are within these LSAA areas; other
repairs would need to be performed under your RMA

MBK is requesting direction from the District and General Manager on possible sole-
source work to address critical sites this spring, and/or planning for summer/fall repairs. If there
are any questions, please notify me at your convenience. I can be reached at (916) 761-1281 or
(916) 456-440 or by email at moncrief@mbkengineers.com.

Sincerely,
MBK ENGINEERS

Engineers for Recla afion Wistrict No. 2044

Michael Moncrief, P.E.

MM/mr/nl
RD 2044_SITE INSPECTION_WATERSIDE REPAIRS_2025-03-24

Enclosures: Critical and Serious Site Map; Critical and Serious tables

cc: Via Email to Trustees Skip Foppiano, John Jackson, Andy Solari, Henry
Foppiano, Steve Van Duyn

Page 23



CRITICAL
mmm SERIOUS |

L ey

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 2044

KING ISLAND
GGttt
455 University Avenuc, Suite 100
Sacramento, California 95825 EROSION SITES
Phone: (916) 456-4400 + Fax: (916) 456-0253

X:\4375.60 RD 2044 — King Islond\2025-03 Erosion Survey\ACAD\RD 2044 — King Island — 2025-03 Erosion Survey.dwg 4/7/2025 10:32 AM rouillard

Page 24




Bank Protection Project(s) 2025 Spring Post Flood Season Damaged Sites

Site Data

Reclamation District No. 2044 - King Island
Eroded Slopes or High Energy Damaged Sites

CRITICAL PRIORITY SITES
SITE# | BEGINSTA | ENDSTA | LENGTH (FT) | QUANTITY (TON)
1 8+50 10+00 150 105
2 12+50 12+80 30 21 -
3 28+00 30425 225 158 >
4 44+30 45+50 120 84 2
5 49+00 49+50 50 35 Z
6 55100 56+00 100 70 =
7 60+00 60+50 50 35 B
8 64+80 65+00 20 14
9 79+80 79+95 15 11
10 102+00 103+50 150 105
11 108+20 109+10 90 63 2
12 124+00 127+00 300 210 %
13 130+00 134+00 400 280 =
14 14400 144+50 50 35 E
15 157430 158+15 85 60 =
16 162+10 162425 15 11 S
17 172+40 173415 75 53 £
18 175+80 176+00 20 14
19 184425 187+00 275 193
20 248+90 250+00 110 77 2 E =
21 253+00 254+00 100 70 gg43
22 323400 324+00 100 70
23 351400 352420 120 84
24 372400 372+10 10 7 @
25 397450 398+00 50 35 %
26 401+90 404130 240 168 =
27 404+70 405+60 90 63 E
28 406+20 407+20 100 70 o
29 409+50 410+00 50 35 %
30 410+80 412425 145 102 <
31 425+75 426+00 25 18
32 436+50 437450 100 70 -~
33 440+50 441+50 100 70 >
34 447+00 447+75 75 53 =
35 466+00 466+20 20 14 2
36 470+25 47150 125 88 =
37 472+75 474+00 125 88 5
38 478+00 478+50 50 35 ~
TOTALS 3,955 2,769
COST ESTIMATE $194,000

Page 25



Eroded Slopes or High Energy Damage Potential Sites

Site Data
Reclamation District No. 2044 - King island

Bank Protection Project(S) 2025 Damaged Sites

SERIOUS PRIORITY SITES
SITE # | BEGINSTA | ENDSTA | LENGTH (FT) | QUANTITY (TON)
1 129+00 129420 20 14 >
2 164-+80 165+80 100 70 =
3 190+00 191+00 100 70
4 196+50 197425 75 53
5 235+00 236+50 150 105
6 243+70 244420 50 35
7 274+90 275420 30 21
8 277+50 277+90 40 28
9 290+40 291+10 70 49 <
10 298+20 298+40 20 14 =
11 302+00 302+20 20 14
12 304+00 304+25 25 18
13 318+50 323+00 450 315
14 335+00 335+50 50 35
15 337+50 339+00 150 105
16 340+40 340+70 30 21
17 352420 354+00 180 126
18 366+00 368+00 200 140 2
19 414+20 415+00 80 56 a
20 419+00 420+00 100 70
TOTALS 1,940 1,358
COST ESTIMATE $95,000

Page 26



ENGINEER’S REPORT

Page 27



MYAVAY
AVAVAV

ENGINEERS
Water Resources ¢ Flood Control < Water Rights

MEMORANDUM

July 15, 2025

TO: Reclamation District No. 2044
FROM: Michael Moncrief
SUBJECT: July 2025 Engineer’s Report

Board Members and Representatives:
Described below are the engineering items to be discussed at your July 2025 meeting.

Subventions 2023-24 — Your Subventions Claim inspection was performed with DWR and CDFW, there
are no mitigation requirements. Your total Claim submittal was for $194,881.94. After the $1,000 per
mile deduction, your 75 % reimbursement would be approximately $139,336 if there are no adjustments.

Subventions 2024-25 — MBK is available to support your claim submittals for the 2024-25 fiscal year.
Claims are due to DWR by October 31, 2025. All invoices should be provided at your earliest convenice;
including the managers levee patrol logs. Tina Anderson and I are available to answer any questions and
review District invoices for eligibilty.

2025-26 Subventions Program — The District’s 2025-26 application was submitted for $486,000 of
coverage, for maintenance work. This amount exceeds your $20,000 per mile maintenance cap, and
allows for some work to be eligible under lower priority categories. There is less certainty over the next
five years if the program will seek additional funding if program exenditures exceed $16 million annually.

Erosion Repair Project Recap — MBK performed an erosion assessment this spring to update the
District on their findings, attached is the report denoting critical and serious sites for consideration of
repair and monitoring this year.

Marina Anomaly Repair Complete— Two anomaly repairs, which revealed multiple rodent burrow
activity and unconsolidated materials were repaired along the south levee near the District back gate. A
subsequent chip seal project was completed in June to complete the repair of the previously sealed
roadway. Final invoice submittal and approval is in progress. This work will be included in the 2024-25
FY subventions claim.

District Roadway Repairs and Chip Seal — The chip seal replacement along the east levee at the ramp
and lower road through the Marchetti property is being bid, bid opens on 7/11 and results will be provided
at this meeting. There was only one attendee at the pre-bid, Robert Burns Construction. They self perform
chip seal and asphalt work. There are 2-3 buried pipelines under this access area that will need to be
avoided or replaced if damaged during construction. Speed bumps will be replaced. We are asking for a
quote to repair the crown roadway from Eight Mile Road to this project area, for District consideration.
This road is deteriorationg over time.

Flood Safety Plan Update — MBK is updating your Emergency Operation Plan/FloodContingency Map.

The final draft product will be available for your review in March; all invoicing will be submitted through
455 University Ave., Suite 100 Sacramento, CA 95825 Phone 916/456-4400 FAX 916/456-0253

Page 28



San Joaquin County OES for 100% reimbursement. The District needs to approve the plan and sign the
Promulgation and training policy prior to the flood season to finalize the product. The plan and map have
been provided to the District.

Summer — Fall 2025 Monitoring-Maintenance Activities — Routine maintenance, ongoing repairs in
preparation for Summer and construction/irrigation Season.

1) Erosion Repair Planning— See segment above; at the least the District needs to prepare to monitor

and flood fight any existing sites.

2) Rodent Activity — Monitor new animal activity. Any rodent activity needs to be controlled with
baiting or other methods, backfill of holes and excavation of dens is critical; coordinate with MBK
for any signs of beaver dens.

3) Vegetation Control and Tree Trimming; General Manager report on required maintenance.

4) Pumpstation status: Any resetting of pumps, pipe system required? Due to long term creep,
settlement, does pressure have to be released from pipe/pump connections? Harris valve
replacement; shifting pumps on platforms?

FEMA/OES Update — Districts that have been fully obligated, like RD 2044, are starting to see some
funding come through. Look for payments in the amount of ($95,991.33, $5,202.22, $6,039.70 and
$1,509) respectively from State of California.. We are not sure of timing of payments. All records have to

be provided.

Project &
Q742437

@, 720899

@& 716068

Qseanct @
Category Title 17 Type Process Step
z- Costs ge! Costs Management Costs Obligated
D - Water Control Levee Crown Damage Work C feted / Fully Obli
Facilities Documented
8- Emergency Protective  Emergency Protective N Work Completed / Fully Obl
Measures 100% FedShare 60 Days Documented

Thanks,

455 University Ave., Suite 100

Activity Completion Deadline # Pamages Best Available Cost €

01/14/2031 $5,202 22

07/14/2024 $8,052 93

d 07/14/2023 $95,991 33

Sacramento, CA 95825

A

Phone 916/456-4400 FAX 916/456-0253

Page 29



MINUTES

Page 30



Alan Richard Coon Telephone
Secretary (209) 601-9624

JOINT MEETING
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO.S 2029 & 2044

400 E. Kettleman Lane, Clear Suites
Lodi, CA 95240
recdistrict2029@gmail.com
recdistrict2044@gmail.com

MINUTES

On February 26, 2025, at 8:30 a.m., the joint meeting of the Board of Trustees (“RD 2029
Board”) of Reclamation District No. 2029 (“RD 2029 District”) and Board of Trustees (“‘RD 2044
Board”) of Reclamation District No. 2044 (“RD 2044 District”) was called to order at 8:30 a.m. in the
conference room at 400 E. Kettleman Lane, Suite 20-K to conduct a Special Meeting.

Present: RD 2029 District Trustees, Chris Podesto, Mike Quartaroli and James Harvey (also
Manager); RD 2044 District Trustees, Skip Foppiano, John Jackson, Andy Solari, Henry Foppiano
and Steve Van Duyn; Alan Coon, Secretary and General Counsel for both districts; RD 2044 District
Engineer, Michael Moncrief (MBK Engineers); and miscellaneous landowners including John Glick,
Rod Karnofel, Doug Eberhardt 1l, Wes Day and other landowners arriving late.

RD 2029 Board and RD 2044 Board (collectively “Boards”) reserved the right to advance
certain items and consider matters out of order.

Public Comment: There was no public comment.

Special Presentations:
Green Bridge Financing.

Adam Brown of Green Bridge Financing (GBF), who appeared by ZOOM, generally advised
the Boards and landowners of GBF’s process in financing of reclamation district Solar Projects and
presented a digital summary is also attached as Attachment A to the Agenda. Attachment A is
incorporated herein by reference. Mr. Brown provided his background (GE Capital, REIT experience,
monetizing and training with AVA). GBF sells the “solar credits” at a discount rate range of 80% to
90%. Essentially, GBF “funds” the solar project, builds project through pre-operation after which GBF
creates a limited liability corporation for each project once PG&E gives permission to operate. GBF
then refinances after tax credits are awarded noting that need to get done quickly as currently the
interest rate is near 9 to 9 ¥ %. A third party acts as the “manager” to maintain operation,
maintenance and production of 110%. GBF estimates cleaning at 1 or 2 times a year. At this point
several landowners questioned this estimate because of dusty conditions in the Delta. Thereafter
followed Trustee and landowner discussion on cleaning and security concerns. GBF agrees to
damages if solar production falls below 85%. The agreement term is typically for 25 years but GBF
will consider buy out after 15 years. Secretary Coon asked about earlier buy out and GBF said they
would consider.

Center for Public Enterprise

Page 31



Yakov Feygin, Director of Public Finance for the Center for Public Finance (CPE), appeared by
Z0OOM and presented a “consultant proposal” on the alternative “Direct ['Elective’] Pay option
employing the grant funds under the Infrastructure Act. The “presentation” was also attached to the
Agenda as Attachment B, incorporated herein by reference. Mr. Feygin estimated that the best
reimbursement for this size of solar project is between 20% and 30% not payable until after
completion of project, acceptance by PG&E and after submission of somewhat complicated forms
with the IRS at the end of the tax year. This “investment tax credit” (ITC) has several safe harbor
provisions but it may be cost effective to compare “American made” equipment versus competitively
priced alternatives even with the 20%-30% offset with grant funds. CPE advised that they do not
provide tax advice and urged all to carefully review page 9 of Attachment B for some of the “elective
pay barriers” which can further reduce grant reimbursement. Mr. Feygin concluded concurring with
Secretary’s reminder the direct pay option requires the Districts to own their project and responsible
for operation and maintenance as well as the construction financing. Secretary Coon added that, in
order to participate in the ITC program, the districts must own, not lease, the land parcel.

Renewable Technology

Brad Conklin, with Renewable Technology (RT), added to the discussion on Direct Pay again
pointing out the potential loss of 10% grant reimbursement if use of “domestic content” aka American
made typically does not make economic sense as offset by non-American made cost savings. Mr.
Conklin then went over the ground mount and pole barn options, their estimated pricing and updated
construction permits based upon changes in the construction proposal together with updated
increases in costs (steel [time and imposed tariffs]). Additional RT information was set forth in
Attachment C of the Agenda, incorporated herein by reference. Secretary Coon advised of loan
application with Bank of Stockton for both construction and take out financing with or without Direct
Pay. Matt Brown, Bank of Stockton, provided additional information and answered some questions.

This ended the Special Presentations. Those present, including landowners, discussed
various options and, at the conclusion of lengthy discussions, the Boards directed Secretary/General
Counsel Coon to continue forward with loan negotiations as well as the solar projects in general
preferring the immediate ownership and attempts to obtain solar tax credit payments under Direct Pay
Program. Mr. Coon was authorized by both Boards to seek insurance quotes for the solar projects.

At this juncture RD 2029 District moved, seconded and unanimously ended their meeting
following a brief Closed Session. Then, at 9:30 am RD 2044 District resumed their Meeting advancing
the Engineer’'s Report.

2. Enqineer’s Report. Michael Moncrief, of MBK Engineers (MBK), submitted an Engineer’s
Report (Attachment D to the Agenda) which is attached and incorporated herein by reference. In
addition, Engineer Moncrief advised that the District should expect about $139,336 reimbursement for
the recent Subventions Claim for 2023-2024. There remains at the southwest corner which was
discussed agreeing to continue monitoring. The Board advised that with the passage of Proposition 4
it is estimated that about $150,000,000 would be earmarked for the “subvention-styled” project as
well as “special projects”. The Board then discussed completing the potholes and road surface at the
northeast levee locations (Marchetti, Solari and Foppiano parcels) in the spring, this Subvention year,
with a major erosion repair project, estimated to cost $100,000, for the 2024-2025 if not 2025-26 year
depending upon funding. Please see 2025-26's Application requesting $485,000 as a placeholder

2

Page 32



and “Site Data” listing Serious and Critical Conditions. Engineer Moncrief discussed recent call with
Archer Construction, planned second repair of anomaly at the King Island Marin discovered during
first project. It was noted that the contractor encountered subsurface hard pan if not concrete during
the project. Finally, Manager and Engineer to schedule the chip seal of the KI second anomaly
locations and the northeast pothole project noted above in the 2024-25 subventions year.

1. Manager's Report. Manager Celli reported a new, large pothole just west of the north pump
and that the palm tree discussed at last meeting was removed. Secretary Coon suggested that the
repair of the pothole might be incorporated within one of the upcoming projects.

3. Secretarial and Financial Reports. The Secretary discussed the financial reports including
status of warrants (see Attachment E), that all assessments had been received and applied to
retirement of retirement of warrant #s 104-229 noting that the interest rates would be less in the future
because of new rates (5.5%) given by new lender. Finally, the Secretary advised of the ongoing plan
to cull old records during spring and summer of 2025.

4. Action ltems: The Trustees advanced discussion of Action Item F with Trustees Jackson and
Van Duyn exiting and not participating in discussion. After Discussion in Closed Session, these three
Trustees returned and upon motion by Trustee Solari, Second by Trustee Skip Foppiano and
concurrence by Trustee Henry Foppiano, the Board adopted the new “as built” designs for the “King
Island Pump Station” on Jackson parcel dated Feb. 13, 2025 (see Attachment H), offered by Siegfried
Engineers but subject to quarterly inspections by District's engineers for the first two years and
thereafter annually.

At which time all trustees reconvened to consider Action ltem #s A-D after the discussion and
unanimous approval by Trustees Jackson, Solari and Van Duyn authorizing and granting discretion to
Secretary/General Counsel to negotiate the purchase price (in consultation with said listed Trustees),
shape/size of Foppiano parcel and to open an escrow for the purchase of approximate 1.06 acre
parcel from Foppiano for the solar project. Note: Trustees Skip Foppiano and Henry Foppiano did not
participate in this part of the discussion.

Then, upon motion by Trustee Solari, second by Trustee Jackson, the Board unanimously
acted as follows:

A. Approved current invoices.
B. Approve Minutes for November 12, 2024 (Attachment F).
C. Approved new construction proposal for the Solar Project from Renewable Technologies and

to thereafter update the proposed “bridge” financing arrangement with Bank of Stockton and to
arrange time for loan signatures by Trustees. Secretary Coon to also to prepare any “deed
restrictions” as required by the County of San Joaquin and State of California. Note: Certain part of
this Action ltem #C was noted above to avoid potential conflict of interest.

D. Approved Center for Public Enterprise proposal for assisting in the filing for tax credit for the
Solar Project under the Direct Pay program and to also contract with accounting firm to assist in filing
forms with IRS. Further, the Secretary is authorized to negotiate and to execute any and all relevant
forms, agreements, and/or grant funding agreements consistent with this action including
authorization to execute any and all PG&E forms and agreements to expedite getting the solar project
online.

E. Approved submission of Application for Subventions Program 2025-2026 (Attachment G).

3

Page 33



F. See Action above.
5. Information Iltem: Secretary reminded the Trustees of the need to submit Form 700.
6. Closed Session. See above for details.

At 11:30 am upon unanimous vote the Meeting was adjourned.

.\_%l(\ﬂ .

Alan Richard Coon, Secretary
Reclamation District No. 2029

Dated: July __, 2025

Page 34



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
Page 35



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT
between

Henry J. Foppiano III, a married man and Lynette Foppiano, a married woman
(collectively referred to as the “Seller” or the “Foppianos™)

and

Purchaser Reclamation District No. 2044, a reclamation district formed pursuant to the
Reclamation District Act in the Water Code Section 50000 et seq.

(“Purchaser” or “District No. 2044”)
dated as of

June 30, 2025

Page 36



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE | DEFINITIONS

ARTICLE Il CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY
ARTICLE Il PURCHASE PRICE AND DEPOSIT
ARTICLE IV INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY
ARTICLE V ESCROW

ARTICLE VI CLOSING

ARTICLE VII EXCEPTIONS TO TITLE; TITLE MATTERS
ARTICLE VIII CLOSING DELIVERIES

ARTICLE IX CLOSING COSTS

ARTICLE X APPORTIONMENTS

ARTICLE XIl SELLER'S COVENANTS

ARTICLE XlIl REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES
ARTICLE XIV CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

ARTICLE XV BROKERAGE COMMISSIONS

ARTICLE XVI AS-IS

ARTICLE XVIIl REMEDIES

ARTICLE XX GENERAL PROVISIONS

(02BN e )N &) NN & N - N S OV

11
13
13
15
17
17
21
22

Page 37



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

This PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement"), dated as of the 30TH
day of June, 2025 (the "Effective Date"), is entered into between Henry J. Foppiano III, a
married man and Lynette Foppiano, a married woman (the “Foppianos” or collectively “Seller”)
and Purchaser Reclamation District No. 2044, a reclamation district, also known as Delta Farms
Reclamation District No. 2044, now existingfersed pursuant to the Reclamation District Act in
the Water Code Section 50000 et seq. (“District No. 2044” or “Purchaser”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, Seller is the owner of the Rreal Pproperty located in the Unincorporated
Area of, County of San Joaquin, State of California, and as more particularly described in the
Full Legal Description attached hereto as EXHIBIT “A” (herein “Property”) being a part of
APN #070-080-047; and

WHEREAS, subject to the terms and conditions hereof, Seller desires to sell to Purchaser
the Property and Purchaser desires to purchase the Property from Seller -

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements
hereinafter set forth and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS

The following terms have the meanings specified or referred to in this Article I:

"Environmental Laws" means, without limitation, the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended by the Superfund Amendments
and Reauthorization Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 et seq.), the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 et seq.), the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended
by the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 et seq.), the Safe Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. §§
300f et seq.), the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.), the Occupational Safety and Health
Act (29 U.S.C. §§ 651 et seq.), the Toxic Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. §§
2601 et seq.), Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986 (42 U.S.C. §§
11001 et seq.), the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act (7 U.S.C. §§ 136 et seq.),
the Hazardous Material Transportation Act, as amended (49 U.S.C. §§ 5101 ef seq.), the
California Hazardous Waste Control Law (California Health & Safety Code §§ 25100 et seq.),
the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act (California Water Code §§ 13000 ez seq.), and the
Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (California Health & Safety Code §§
25249.5 et seq.), as the same are amended, any other applicable federal, state, and local laws, and
any and all rules and regulations which have become effective prior to the date of this Agreement
under any and all the aforementioned laws, and other federal, state, and local environmental
laws, rules, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations, common law, orders, regulatory directives,
guidance documents, consent decrees, permits, and other requirements of governmental
authorities governing or relating to the transportation, protection, preservation, conservation, or
regulation of Hazardous Materials or the environment.

3

Page 38



"Hazardous Materials" means any pollutants, contaminants, hazardous, dangerous or
toxic chemicals, materials, substances or wastes (including petroleum, petroleum by-products,
radon, asbestos and asbestos containing materials, per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances,
polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs"), PCB-containing equipment, radioactive elements,
infectious agents, and urea formaldehyde), as such terms may be used in any Environmental
Laws any other substances regulated because of their effect or potential effect on public health
and the environment, including mold pursuant to California Health & Safety Code § 26140, lead
paint, putrescible materials, and methamphetamine contamination pursuant to California Health
& Safety Code § 25400.28 (but excluding solvents, cleaning fluids, and other lawful substances
used in the ordinary operation and maintenance of the Property).

“Deed Restriction”” means those certain terms and conditions required by the County of
San Joaguin (“County”) for a building permit requested from Purchaser to erect a Photo Electric
Solar Generation Facility (the "Utility Facility") on the Property and serve the utility needs of the
Purchaser which includes providing electricity to the District No. 2044's discharge pumps and
related reclamation infrastructure. The County is willing to issue the requested building permit
for the Utility Facility and grant the appropriate entitlement to allow the Utility Facility (and
accessory use) on the Property for the benefit of District so long as the District operates the
Utilitv Facility on the Property as generally described in the Deed Restrictions as more
particularly described in the Full Legal Description attached hereto as EXHIBIT “B”.

ARTICLE IT
CONVEYANCE OF THE PROPERTY

Section II.1  The Property. Seller agrees to sell and convey to Purchaser and Purchaser
agrees to purchase from Seller in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, all
the Seller's right, title, and interest in and to the following, if any (collectively referred to as the
"Property"):

(a) The real property, including all right, title, and interest therein, located at
County of San Joaquin, California, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached

hereto and made a part hereof-(the“Real-Preperty™).

(b)  Allrights, privileges, easements, and rights-of-way appurtenant to said
Real-Property, excluding all mineral, oil and gas, and other subsurface rights,
development rights, and air rights.

(c) All improvements and fixtures located on the Real-Property, including,
without limitation: (i) all structures affixed to the Real-Property; (ii) all apparatus,
equipment, and appliances used in connection with the operation or occupancy of the
Real-Property; and (iii) all facilities used to provide any services to the Real-Property or
the structures affixed thereto (collectively, the "Improvements").

ARTICLE III
PURCHASE PRICE AND DEPOSIT

Page 39



Section ITI.1 Purchase Price. Purchaser shall pay Seller through escrow the sum of
Forty--Nine Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($49,000) (the "Purchase Price"), subject to such
apportionments, adjustments, and credits as are provided in Article X.

Section ITL.2 Payment of Purchase Price. Purchaser shall pay the Purchase Price by
wire transfer of immediately available federal funds to Chicago Title Company, attention Sherri
Cearley, Escrow Officer, 203 W. March Lane, Ste # 110, Stockton CA 95219 ("Escrow
Holder"). Escrow Holder agrees to hold the Purchase Price in escrow pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement. Any interest earned on the Purchase Price shall be deemed to be part of the
Purchase Price, it being understood and agreed that if the transaction contemplated under this
Agreement closes, any interest earned shall be credited to the Purchase Price upon the Closing.
The balance of the Purchase Price, adjusted to reflect prorations and other adjustments pursuant
to Article X, shall be deposited by Purchaser's wire transfer of immediately available federal
funds with Escrow Holder at least one (1) Business Day prior to the Closing Date.

ARTICLE 1V
INVESTIGATION OF THE PROPERTY

Section IV.1 Purchaser's Inspection Period. Notwithstanding any other provisions to
the contrary contained in this Agreement, Purchaser shall have seven (7) days from the Effective
Date ("Inspection Deadline") in which to make such investigations and studies with respect to
the Property as Purchaser deems appropriate ("Inspection Period"). Purchaser shall have the
right to terminate this Agreement for any reason whatsoever, in Purchaser’s sole and absolute
discretion, by sending written notice to Seller with a copy to Escrow Holder. If Purchaser elects
to terminate this Agreement, Purchaser's termination notice is to be received on or before the
Inspection Deadline. If, however, Purchaser fails to give timely notice of such termination and
such termination notice is not received by Seller on or before 5:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the
Inspection Deadline, then Purchaser's rights under this Section 4.01 shall be deemed to have
been waived by Purchaser. In such an event, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect
without any longer being subject to this Section 4.01, Subject to the provisions of Section 4.02,
Purchaser and its agents, employees, consultants, inspectors, appraisers, engineers, and
contractors (collectively "Purchaser's Representatives") shall have the right, through the
Inspection Deadline, upon the advance notice required pursuant to Section 4.02(b), to enter upon
and pass through the Property during normal business hours to examine and visually inspect the
same, however, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the parties.

Section IV.2 Seller Indemnification. Purchaser agrees to indemnify and hold Seller
and its disclosed or undisclosed, direct and indirect shareholders, officers, directors, trustees,
partners, principals, members, employees, agents, affiliates, representatives, consultants,
accountants, contractors, and attorneys or other advisors, and any successors or assigns of the
foregoing (collectively with Seller, the "Seller-Related Parties") harmless from and against any
and all losses, costs, damages, liens, claims, liabilities, or expenses (including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and disbursements) incurred by any Seller-Related Parties
arising from or by reason of Purchaser's and/or Purchaser's Representatives' access to, or
inspection of, the Property, or any tests, inspections, or other due diligence conducted by or on

Page 40



behalf of Purchase. The provisions of this Section 4.03 shall survive the Closing or any
termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE V
ESCROW

Section V.1 Escrow Terms. Escrow Holder shall hold and disburse the Purchase
Money in accordance with the following provisions:

(a) If the Closing occurs, then Escrow Holder shall deliver the Purchase
Money on deposit to Seller.

(b) If Escrow Holder receives a notice signed by Purchaser or Seller (the
"Noticing Party") stating that: (i) this Agreement has been cancelled or terminated
pursuant to the terms of a specific section of this Agreement giving either Purchaser or
Seller the right to terminate this Agreement, and that such Noticing Party is entitled to the
Purchase Money Deposit.

Section V.2  No Liability. Escrow Holder is acting hereunder without charge as an
accommodation to Purchaser and Seller, it being understood and agreed that Escrow Holder shall
not be liable for any error in judgment or any act done or omitted by it in good faith or pursuant
to court order, or for any mistake of fact or law. Escrow Holder shall not incur any liability in
acting upon any document or instrument believed thereby to be genuine. Escrow Holder is
hereby released and exculpated from all liability hereunder, except only for willful misconduct or
gross negligence. Escrow Holder may assume that any person purporting to give it any notice on
behalf of any Party has been authorized to do so. Escrow Holder shall not be liable for, and
Purchaser and Seller hereby jointly and severally agree to indemnify Escrow Holder against, any
loss, liability, or expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees (either paid to retained attorneys
or, representing the fair value of legal services rendered by Escrow Holder to itself), arising out
of any dispute under this Agreement, including the cost and expense of defending itself against
any claim arising hereunder. The provisions of this Section 5.02 shall survive the termination of
this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
CLOSING

The closing of the transaction contemplated hereby (the "Closing™) shall occur in escrow
at or before 11:00 a.m. Pacific Time on or before July  *, 2025 (the “Closing Date") in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Closing shall occur in escrow,
with Seller submitting Seller's Closing Deliverables (as defined in Section 8.01 below) and
Purchaser submitting Purchaser's Closing Deliverables (as defined in Section 8.02 below) to the
Title Company on or prior to 3:00 p.m. Pacific Time on the Business Day prior to the Closing
Date pursuant to Seller's and Purchaser's respective closing instructions to the Title Company,
which must be consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Seller agrees to deliver possession of
the Property to Purchaser on the Closing Date.

Page 41



ARTICLE VII
EXCEPTIONS TO TITLE; TITLE MATTERS

Section VII.1 Permitted Exceptions and Representations. The Property shall be sold,
assigned, and conveyed by Seller to Purchaser, and Purchaser shall accept and assume same,
subject only to the following matters (collectively, the "Permitted Exceptions"):

(a) All presently existing and future liens for unpaid real estate taxes,
assessments, and public utility charges that are not due and payable as of the Closing
Date, subject to adjustment as provided pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.

(b) All present and future zoning, building, environmental, and other laws,
statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, restrictions, requirements, regulations, and executive
mandates of all governmental authorities having jurisdiction with respect to the Property,
including, without limitation, landmark designations, all zoning variances, and special

exceptions, if any{—pyeHdeMaewe:vepphaHhe—ﬁ&me-me-ﬂe{—welafed-b%khe-

being-used-on-the-date-of this- Agreement] (collectively, "Laws and Regulatlons")

() All covenants, restrictions, and rights of record and all easements and
agreements of record for the erection and/or maintenance of water, gas, steam, electric,
telephone, sewer, or other utility pipelines, poles, wires, conduits, or other like facilities,
and appurtenances thereto, over, across, and under the Property (collectively, "Rights").

(d) Any state of facts which would be shown on or by an accurate current
survey of the Property/Any state of facts shown on the survey dated on or about June 27,
2025 made by Michael Quartaroli, together with any additional state of facts that a
subsequent accurate survey of the Property would show (collectively, "Facts").

(e Rights of Tenants. Seller represents that there are no tenants or subtenants

on the Property. nor is Seller aware that ofthe-Property-pursuant-to-leases-and-any-and-
all-amendments-assicnments-and-subleases-with-Seller-er-any predecessor fee owner of
the Property haser-otherstatutery Tenants_s-and/or others claiming by, through, or under
any such Tenants.

® All violations of building, fire, sanitary, environmental, housing, and
similar Laws and Regulations whether or not noted or issued at the date hereof or at the
Closing Date and any notices of violations of law or ordinances, orders, or requirements
noted or issued prior to, on, or after the date of this Agreement (collectively, the
"Violations").

(g) Consents-by-Seller represents that neither it. norer any former owner of
the Property. has objections or legal cause to prevent -fer-the erection and maintenance of
any structure or structures on, under, or above any street or roads on which the Property
may abut.

Page 42



6)) The standard conditions and exceptions to title contained in the Title
Report or the form of Title Policy issued to Purchaser by the Title Company.

) Any lien or encumbrance (including, without limitation, any mechanics
lien and materialmen's lien) the removal of which is the obligation of Sellera—~Fenant.

k) The Non-Objectionable Encumbrances and any liens, encumbrances, or
other title exceptions approved or waived by Purchaser as provided in this Agreement.

)] Any other matter which the Title Company may raise as an exception to
title, provided the Title Company shall insure against collection or enforcement of same
and/or that no prohibition of present use or maintenance of the Property shall result
therefrom, as may be applicable.

(m)  Any lien or encumbrance arising out of the acts or omissions of Purchaser.

(n) Seller represents that there no outstanding and unpaid A#y-special
assessments including but not limited to any and all special assessments that are presently
assessed, a lien against or imposed on the Property not yet due and payable, payable in
installments, and/or in a lump sum.

(o) Any exceptions disclosed in the Title Report which shall be extinguished
upon the transfer of the Property.

Section VIIL.2 Title. Seller shall promptly order from Chicago Title Company (the "Title
Company"), a title commitment or preliminary report (the "Title Report") and shall cause a
copy of the Title Report to be delivered to Purchaser's attorney. If Purchaser fails to give Seller
such notice of any objections to the Title Report, Purchaser shall be deemed to have
unconditionally waived any additional matters as to which it fails to give such notice to Seller.

Section VIL.3 Seller Unable to Convey.

(a) If, on the Closing Date, Seller fails or is unable to convey title to the
Property to Purchaser subject to and in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement,
Seller and Purchaser shall have the following rights and obligations:

)] Seller shall be entitled to reasonable adjournments of the Closing
one or more times for a period not to exceed twenty (20) days in the aggregate to
enable Seller to convey such title to the Property;

Page 43



(i1) If Seller does not elect to adjourn the Closing, and on the Closing
Date fails or is unable to convey title subject to and in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement, Purchaser shall be entitled, to either: (A) terminate
this Agreement by written notice to Seller and Escrow Holder delivered on or
before the Closing Date, in which event Purchaser shall be entitled to a return of
any monies deposited, and this Agreement shall thereupon be deemed terminated
and of no further effect, and neither Party hereto shall have any obligations to the
other hereunder or by reason hereof, except for the provisions hereof that
expressly survive termination of this Agreement; or (B) complete the purchase
(with no reduction in the Purchase Price) with such title as Seller is able to convey
on the Closing Date. If Purchaser shall fail to give such notice as aforesaid,
Purchaser shall be deemed to have elected subclause (B) above and the Closing
shall take place on the Closing Date.

(iii)  Seller shall. at the option of the Purchaser, agree to lease the
Property to Purchaser.

(b) ; ; ) :
Seller shall ﬂGt—hﬁ—F@G}&H@d—I@—tﬁke or brmg any action or proceeding or any other steps to
remove any defect in or objection to title or to fulfill any condition precedent to
Purchaser's obligations under this Agreement including expendingeste-expend-any-
moneys therefor, and providingresshal Purchaser with the have-any right of action
against Seller therefor, at law or in equity, exeept-thatSellershal-on-orpriorto the-
Clesingpay, discharge, or remove of record or cause any voluntary lien to be paid,
discharged, or removed of record at Seller's sole cost and expense.

Section VIL.4 Title as Seller Can Convey. Notwithstanding anything in Section 7.01
and Section 7.03 above to the contrary, Purchaser may at any time accept such title as Seller can
convey, without reduction of the Purchase Price or any credit or allowance on account thereof or
any claim against Seller. The acceptance of the Deed by Purchaser shall be deemed to be full
performance of, and discharge of, every agreement and obligation on Seller's part to be
performed under this Agreement, except for such matters which are expressly stated to survive
the Closing hereunder.

ARTICLE VIII
CLOSING DELIVERIES

Section VIII.1 Seller's Closing Deliveries. No later than one (1) Business Day
prior to the Closing Date, Seller shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Escrow Holder one
(1) original (unless otherwise indicated) of the following (collectively, the "Seller's Closing
Deliverables"):

(@) A grant deed subject to the Permitted Exceptions (the "Deed") in
substantially the form of Exhibit CB attached hereto and made a part hereof, duly
executed by Seller with the appropriate acknowledgment form and otherwise in proper
form for recording conveying title to the Property to Purchaser as required by this
Agreement. The delivery of the Deed by Seller, and the acceptance by Purchaser, shall be

9

Page 44



deemed the full performance and discharge of every obligation on the part of Seller to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement, except those obligations of Seller which are
expressly stated in this Agreement to survive the Closing.

(b) A certification stating its taxpayer identification number for federal
income tax purposes and affirming that Seller is not a "foreign person" within the
meaning of Section 1445 of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended and the regulations
thereunder (the "FIRPTA Certificate") and a California Franchise Tax Board (FTB)
Form 593, each duly executed by Seller.

© All keys, key cards, combinations, and access codes relating to the
operation of the Property, to the extent in Seller's possession or control.

(d) An original or electronically signed copy of the Closing Statement
prepared by Escrow Holder under Section 10.06 of this Agreement for Seller, executed
by Seller.

() All other documents reasonably necessary or otherwise required by the
Escrow Holder or the Title Company to consummate the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement.

Section VIII.2 Purchaser's Closing Deliveries. No later than one (1) Business
Day prior to the Closing Date, Purchaser shall deliver or cause to be delivered to the Escrow
Holder in Escrow one (1) original (unless otherwise indicated) of the following (collectively, the
"Purchaser's Closing Deliverables"):

(a) The balance of the Purchase Price as set forth in Section 3.02(b), as
adjusted for apportionments pursuant to Article X of this Agreement.

(b) A written R{-esolutlon {eonsent executed by the Secretary efthe-
5 : of Purchaser authorizing the transaction
contemplated hereby and the execution and dellvery of the documents required to be
executed and delivered hereunder.

(©) Such evidence as the Title Company may require as to the authority of the
person or persons executing documents on behalf of Purchaser;

(d) An original or electronically signed copy of the Closing Statement
prepared by Escrow Holder under Section 10.06 of this Agreement for Purchaser,
executed by Purchaser.

(e) All other documents reasonably necessary or otherwise required by
Escrow Holder or the Title Company to consummate the transactions contemplated by
this Agreement.

The Seller's obligation to sell the Property to the Purchaser shall be subject to the Purchaser's
delivery of the Purchaser's Closing Deliverables (or the Seller's written waiver thereof, it being
agreed that the Seller may waive in writing any of the Purchaser Closing Deliveries).

10

Page 45



ARTICLE IX
CLOSING COSTS

Section IX.1 Closing Costs.

(a) Seller shall pay: (i) the recording charges for the Deed; (ii) that portion of
the premium for a standard coverage Title Policy; (iii) all documentary transfer taxes
assessed by the County of San Joaquin and one-half (1/2) of the transfer taxes assessed
by any City or County, in connection with the recordation of the Deed; and (iv) one-half
(1/2) of the Escrow Holder's fee. In addition, Seller shall pay outside of escrow all legal
and professional fees and costs of attorneys and other consultants and agents retained by
Seller.

(b) Purchaser shall pay: (i) all document recording charges applicable to
recording loan documents for its financing from Purchaser's lender; (ii) the additional
premium for ALTA extended coverage and any title endorsements requested by
Purchaser; (iii) one-half (1/2) of the Escrow Holder's fee; (iv) one-half (1/2) of the
transfer taxes assessed by any City or County_unless determined to be exempt; and (v)]
all charges incurred by Purchaser for the Purchaser's Survey or any update to the Seller's
Survey. Purchaser shall pay outside of Escrow all costs and expenses related to the
Purchaser's investigation of the Property, and all legal and professional fees and costs of
attorneys and other consultants and agents retained by Purchaser.

ARTICLE X
APPORTIONMENTS

Section X.1 Apportionments at Closing. The following shall be prorated as of 11:59
p.m. Pacific Time on the day immediately preceding the Closing Date (the " Apportionment
Date") on the basis of the actual number of days of the month which shall have elapsed as of the
Closing Date and based upon the actual number of days in the month and a three hundred sixty-
five/three hundred sixty-five (365)-day year:

(a) All real estate and personal property taxes and assessments attributable to
the Property. Seller shall be charged with all such taxes up to, but not including, the
Closing Date. If the applicable tax rate and assessments for the Property have not been
established for the year in which Closing occurs, the proration of real estate taxes,
personal property taxes, and assessments, as the case may be at Closing, shall be based
upon the rate and assessments for the preceding year. All taxes imposed because of a
change in ownership of the Property shall be paid by Purchaser. If any reduction in real
estate taxes or assessment affecting the Property are granted for any tax year prior to or in
which the Closing occurs, then Seller shall be entitled to receive its pro rata share of such
reduction, in the form of a refund from the taxing authority or payment from Purchaser
upon Purchaser's receipt of such refund or credit against current taxes or assessments
which is attributable to any such reduction. If there any special assessment or bonds
which encumber the Property, Purchaser shall pay any and all future installments of such
bonds or assessments affecting the Property which accrue from and after the Closing

11

Page 46



Date. Any bond payments or assessments liens payable for the current period shall be
prorated in accordance with this Section 10.01(b).

(b) All water-sewer-garbage-haulingfees;-clectrictelephonefuel; and other
utility charges based on the last ascertainable bill unless meter readings are made as of
the Closing Date, in which case such meter readings shall govern. If the apportionment is
not based on an actual current reading, but rather the last ascertainable bill, then upon the
taking of a subsequent actual reading (which shall be conducted no later than Thirty (30)
days following the Closing), the parties shall readjust such apportionment and Seller shall
deliver to Purchaser or Purchaser shall deliver to Seller, as the case may be, the amount
determined to be due upon such readjustment.

() Any charges or fees for transferable licenses and permits for the Property.

(d All other costs, operating expenses, or other items pertaining to the
Property that are customarily prorated in connection with the sale of a property
substantially similar to the Property in the County of San Joaquin, California.

Section X.2  Utility Charges. All water, electric, telephone;fuel-and other utility
charges that were prorated as of the Closing Date based on the last ascertainable bill shall be
adjusted and prorated as of the Closing Date upon receipt of the actual statements for said
utilities.

Section X.3 Closing Statement. At least two (2) Business Days prior to the Closing
Date, the parties shall agree upon all the prorations to be made and submit that information to
Escrow Holder. At least one (1) Business Day prior to the Closing Date, Escrow Holder shall
prepare and deliver for Seller's and Purchaser's review and approval a final closing statement for
each Party reflecting the prorations and adjustments agreed to by Seller and Purchaser, together
with all remaining charges, credits, and adjustments and the balance of the Purchase Price due
Seller (each, a "Closing Statement"). In the event that any prorations, apportionments, or
computations made under this Article X require final adjustment, then the parties shall make the
appropriate adjustments promptly when accurate information becomes available and either Party
hereto shall be entitled to an adjustment to correct the same. Any corrected adjustment or
proration shall be paid in cash to the Party entitled thereto. The provisions of this Section 10.06
shall survive the Closing.

Section X.4 Seller's Insurance. Seller shall not be required to assign any policies of
insurance in respect of the Property to Purchaser and Purchaser shall be responsible for obtaining
its own insurance as of the Closing Date.

Section X.5 Disbursements and Other Actions by Escrow Holder. At the Closing,
Escrow Holder shall promptly undertake all the following in the manner indicated:

(a) Record the Deed in the Official Records of San Joaquin County,
California (the "Official Records");

12

Page 47



(b) Disburse the funds deposited with Escrow Holder in accordance with each
Party's respective Closing Statement;

© Deliver to Seller: (i) a conformed copy of the Deed showing the applicable
recording information thereon; (ii) a copy of the final Closing Statement; and (iii)
originals (or copies where originals are not available) of each other non-recorded
documents submitted into escrow by Purchaser and Seller; and

(d) Deliver to Purchaser: (i) the recorded Deed showing the applicable
recording information thereon; (ii) a copy of the final Closing Statement; and (iii)
originals (or copies where originals are not available) of each other non-recorded
documents submitted into escrow by Purchaser and Seller.

Section X.6  Survival. The provisions of this Article X shall survive the Closing or the
earlier termination of this Agreement; provided, however, that any reprorations or
reapportionments shall be made as and when required under Section 10.06 hereof. Any cotrected
adjustment or proration shall be paid by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the Party
entitled thereto.

ARTICLE XI
SELLER'S COVENANTS

Section XI.1 Seller's Covenants. Seller covenants that:
€)) From the Effective Date until the Closing, Seller shall:

1) Maintain the Property in the ordinary course of business and
deliver the Property to Purchaser at the Closing in substantially the same
condition it was in as of the Effective Date, ordinary wear and tear excepted;

(i)  Continue its customary practices with respect to contracts affecting
the Property; and

(iii)  Maintain general liability and property damage insurance in
amounts that it customarily maintains.

ARTICLE XII
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

Section XII.1 Seller's Representations and Warranties.

(a) Except as expressly set forth in this Section 13.01, Seller has not made and
does not make any representations or warranties, including any representations or
warranties as to the physical and environmental condition, layout, leases, footage, Rents,
income, expenses, zoning, or other matters with respect to the Property.

13

Page 48



) Seller hereby represents and warrants to Purchaser that on and as of the
date of this Agreement and on and as of the Closing Date as follows:

(1) This Agreement is valid and binding upon Seller, subject to
bankruptcy, reorganization, and other similar laws affecting the enforcement of
creditors' rights generally;

(i)  Neither the execution, delivery, and performance of this
Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby is
prohibited by, or requires Seller to obtain any consent, authorization, approval, or
registration under any law, statute, rule, regulation, judgment, order, writ,
injunction, or decree which is binding upon Seller;

(iii)  Seller is not a "foreign person” within the meaning of Section 1445
of the Internal Revenue Code 1986, as amended, or any regulations promulgated
thereunder, and is exempt from withholding pursuant to California FTB Form
593.

Section XII.2 Limitations of Seller's Representations and Warranties. Seller's
representations and warranties set forth in this Article XIII are subject to all the following:

(a) The "Designated Employees" shall be solely be Henry J. Foppiano III
“Skip”. References to the "knowledge" of Seller shall: (i) refer only to the current actual
knowledge of the Designated Employees, and shall not be construed, by imputation or
otherwise, to refer to the knowledge of Seller or any affiliate of Seller, any property
manager, or any officer, agent, manager, representative, or employee of Seller other than
the Designated Employees; and (ii) not impose upon any Designated Employee or any
other person any duty to investigate the matter to which such knowledge, or the absence
thereof, pertains.

(b) The representations and warranties of Seller set forth in Section 13.01
hereof shall survive Closing for a period of six (6) months, at which time they shall be
merged with the Deed.

Section XIL.3 Purchaser's Representations and Warranties.
(a) Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller that:

@) Purchaser, a public entity exempt from taxation. has the full power
and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement in accordance with its
terms. Purchaser is an entity, duly formed and in good standing under the laws of
the State of California and is quallﬁed to conduct busmess in the State of
California}. All requisite action - :5e)-has
been taken by Purchaser in connection w1th this Agreement or shall have been
taken on or prior to the Closing Date. Purchaser's execution, delivery, and
performance of this Agreement have been duly authorized, and all required
consents or approvals have been obtained. The individuals executing this

14

Page 49



Agreement on behalf of Purchaser have the power and authority to bind Purchaser
to the terms and conditions of this Agreement;

(i)  This Agreement is a valid and binding obligation of Purchaser,
enforceable against Purchaser in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, or other similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditors' rights generally;

(iii)  Purchaser has not violated any contract, agreement, or other
instrument to which Purchaser is a party nor any judicial order, judgment, or
decree to which Purchaser is bound by: (A) entering into this Agreement; (B)
executing any of the documents Purchaser is obligated to execute and deliver on
the Closing Date; or (C) performing any of its duties or obligations under this
Agreement or otherwise necessary to consummate the transactions contemplated
by this Agreement;

(iv)  There are no judgments, orders, or decrees of any kind against
Purchaser unpaid or unsatisfied of record, or, to the best of Purchaser's
knowledge, which would have any material adverse effect on the business or
assets or the condition, financial or otherwise, of Purchaser or the ability of
Purchaser to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, and
there are no actions, lawsuits, litigation, or proceedings pending or threatened in
any court or before any governmental or regulatory agency that affect Purchaser's
power or authority to enter into or perform this Agreement; and

W) Purchaser shall defend and indemnify Seller against, and hold
Seller harmless from, all claims, demands, liabilities, losses, damages, costs, and
expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, asserted by third parties for any
breach, default, or violation of any Lease, or covenant thereof, occurring after the
Closing Date.

)] The representations and warranties set forth in Section 13.03 shall be
continuing and shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date
with the same force and effect as if made at that time. The representations and warranties
set forth in Section 13.03 shall survive the Closing for sixty (60) days after the Closing
Date and shall not be affected by any investigation, verification, or approval by any party
or anyone on behalf of any Party to this Agreement.

Section XI1.4 California Health & Safety Code Section 78700 Disclosure. Section
78700 of the California Health & Safety Code requires owners of nonresidential real property
who know, or have reasonable cause to believe, that any release of hazardous substance has
come to be located on or beneath the real property to provide written notice of such to a
purchaser of the real property. Purchaser acknowledges and agrees that the sole inquiry and
investigation Seller has conducted in connection with the environmental condition of the
Property is to obtain and/or review those certain environmental reports, assessments, and studies
of the Property delivered to Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement, if any (collectively, "Seller's
Environmental Reports"). Purchaser: (a) acknowledges Purchaser's receipt of the foregoing

15

Page 50



notice given pursuant to Section 78700 of the California Health and Safety Code; (b) is fully
aware of the matters described in the Seller's Environmental Reports, if any; and (c) after
receiving advice of Purchaser's legal counsel, waives any and all rights Purchaser may have to
assert that Seller has not complied with the requirements of Section 78700 of the California
Health and Safety Code. The representations, warranties, and agreements in this Section 13.05
shall survive the Closing.

ARTICLE XIIT
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING

Section XIII.1 Conditions to Obligations of Seller. Notwithstanding anything to
the contrary contained herein, the obligation of Seller to close title in accordance with this
Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the fulfillment by and as of the time of the Closing, of
each of the conditions listed below, provided that Seller, at its election, evidenced by written
notice delivered to Purchaser at or prior to the Closing, may waive any of such conditions:

(a) Purchaser shall have: (i) executed and delivered to Seller all the
documents required to be delivered by Purchaser at the Closing; (ii) paid the full balance
of the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 3.02(b) above; (iii) paid all other sums
of money required under this Agreement; and (iv) taken or caused to be taken all the
other actions required of Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement.

(b) Purchaser shall not be in default of any covenant or agreement to be
performed by Purchaser under this Agreement and shall have performed all other
obligations required to be performed by it under this Agreement on or prior to the
Closing Date.

(©) The representations and warranties of Purchaser contained in Section
13.03 shall be true and correct.

Section XIII.2 Conditions to Obligations of Purchaser. Notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained herein, the obligation of Purchaser to close the transaction and
pay the Purchase Price in accordance with this Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the
fulfillment by and as of the time of the Closing of each of the conditions listed below, provided
that Purchaser, at its election, evidenced by written notice delivered to Seller at or prior to the
Closing, may waive all or any of such conditions:

(a) Seller shall have executed and delivered to Purchaser all the documents
required to be delivered by Seller at the Closing and taken all other action required of
Seller at the Closing.

(b) All representations and warranties made by Seller in Section 13.01 shall
be true and correct in all material respects as if made on the Closing Date; provided,
however, to the extent the facts and circumstances underlying such representations and
warranties may have changed as of the Closing Date, Seller shall have the right to update
its representations and warranties as of the Closing Date and Purchaser shall be obligated
to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement on the Closing Date.

16

Page 51



(c) The Title Company shall be willing to insure title to the Property pursuant
to an ALTA Title Insurance Policy in the amount of the Purchase Price, subject only to
the Permitted Exceptions and as otherwise provided in this Agreement (the "Title
Policy").

(d) Purchaser’s inspection of the Property does not reveal Hazardous
Materials or violation of Environmental Laws.

Section XIIL3 Failure of Conditions to Closing.

(a) If any condition precedent to Seller's obligation is not timely satisfied (and
Seller has not waived the condition in writing), then Seller, in Seller's sole and absolute
discretion, may (in addition to any rights Seller may have under Section 18.01 of this
Agreement in the event that the non-satisfaction of a condition is a result of a breach or
default by Purchaser) terminate this Agreement by written notice thereof to Purchaser and
Escrow Holder, and Escrow Holder shall refund to Purchaser the Purchase Price, together
with Purchaser's Costs, and upon such refund and payment being made, this Agreement
shall terminate and have no further force or effect and neither Party shall have any further
rights or obligations with respect to each other or this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIV
BROKERAGE COMMISSIONS

Section XIV.1Purchaser Representation. Purchaser represents and warrants to Seller
that it has not dealt or negotiated with or engaged on its own behalf or for its benefit, any broker,
finder, consultant, advisor, or professional in the capacity of a broker or finder (each a "Broker")
in connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. Purchaser hereby
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold Seller and any Seller-Related Parties, harmless from and
against any and all claims, demands, causes of action, losses, costs, and expenses (including
reasonable attorneys' fees, court costs, and disbursements) arising from any claim for
commission, fees, or other compensation or reimbursement for expenses made by any Broker
other than Purchaser's Broker engaged by or claiming to have dealt with Purchaser in connection
with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section XIV.2Seller Representation. Seller represents and warrants to Purchaser that it
has not dealt or negotiated with or engaged on its own behalf or for its benefit, any Broker in
connection with this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. Seller hereby agrees to
indemnify, defend, and hold Purchaser and its disclosed and undisclosed direct and indirect
shareholders, officers, directors, partners, principals, members, employees, agents, contractors,
and any successors or assigns of the foregoing, harmless from and against any and all claims,
demands, causes of action, losses, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees,
court costs, and disbursements) arising from any claim for commission, fees, other
compensation, or reimbursement for expenses made by any Broker (including Seller's Broker)
engaged by or claiming to have dealt with Seller in connection with this Agreement or the
transactions contemplated hereby.

17

Page 52



Section XIV.3Survival. The provisions of this Article XV shall survive the termination
of this Agreement or the Closing.

ARTICLE XV
AS-IS

Section XV.1 AS-IS, WHERE IS. Except as expressly set forth in this Agreement to the
contrary, Purchaser is expressly purchasing the Property in its existing condition "AS-IS,
WHERE IS, AND WITH ALL FAULTS" and, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement,
based upon the condition (physical or otherwise) of the Property as of the Effective Date, subject
to: (a) the provisions of Article XVII of this Agreement; and (b) the representations and
warranties of Seller set forth in this Agreement, subject to reasonable use, ordinary wear and
tear, and without any reduction in or abatement of the Purchase Price. Purchaser has undertaken
all such investigations of the Property as Purchaser deems necessary or appropriate under the
circumstances as to the status of the Property and the existence or nonexistence of curative action
to be taken with respect to any hazardous or toxic substances on or discharged from the Property,
and based upon same, Purchaser is and shall be relying strictly and solely upon such inspections
and examinations and the advice and counsel of its own consultants, agents, legal counsel, and
officers.

Section XV.2 No Warranty or Other Representation. Neither Party to this Agreement
is relying on any statement or representation not expressly stated in this Agreement. Purchaser
specifically confirms and acknowledges that in entering into this Agreement, Purchaser has not
been induced by, and has not relied upon, whether express or implied, warranties, guaranties,
promises, statements, inducements, representations, or information pertaining to the Property or
its uses, the physical condition, environmental condition, state of title, income, expenses or
operation of the Property, or any other matter or thing with respect thereto, written or unwritten,
whether made by Seller or any agent, employee, or other representative of Seller, or any broker
or any other person representing (or purporting to represent) Seller, which are not expressly set
forth in this Agreement. Seller shall not be liable for or bound by any written or unwritten
statements, representations, warranties, brokers' statements, or other information pertaining to
the Property furnished by Seller, any broker, any agent, employee, or other actual (or purported)
representative of Seller, or any person, unless and only to the extent the same are expressly set
forth in this Agreement.

Section XV.3 Environmental Laws; Hazardous Materials. Seller makes no warranty
with respect to the presence of Hazardous Materials on, above or beneath the Property (or any
parcel in proximity thereto) or in any water on or under the Property. The Closing hereunder
shall be deemed to constitute an express waiver of Purchaser's right to cause Seller to be joined
in any action brought under any Environmental Laws.

Section XV.4 As-Is; Seller Release.

(a) Except for the express representations and warranties of Seller found
herein, includingin Section 13.01, Purchaser acknowledges that Purchaser has made
thorough inspections and investigations of the Property, and Purchaser agrees to take title
to the Property "AS-IS, WHERE IS, AND WITH ALL FAULTS" without any

18

Page 53



representation or warranty of any kind or nature whatsoever, express or implied, and in
the condition existing as of the date of this Agreement, subject to reasonable use,
ordinary wear and tear, and without any reduction in or abatement of the Purchase Price.
Purchaser has undertaken all such investigations of the Property as Purchaser deems
necessary or appropriate under the circumstances as to the status of the Property and the
existence or nonexistence of curative action to be taken with respect to any Hazardous
Materials on or discharged from the Property, and based upon same, Purchaser is and
shall be relying strictly and solely upon such inspections and examinations and the advice
and counsel of its own consultants, agents, legal counsel, and officers.

(b)  Purchaser specifically confirms and acknowledges that in entering into
this Agreement, Purchaser has not been induced by, and has not relied upon, whether
express or implied, warranties, guaranties, promises, statements, inducements,
representations, or information pertaining to the Property or its uses, the physical
condition, environmental condition, state of title, income, expenses, or operation of the
Property, or any other matter or thing with respect thereto, written or unwritten, whether
made by Seller or any agent, employee, or other representative of Seller, or any broker or
any other person representing (or purporting to represent) Seller, which are not expressly
set forth in this Agreement. Seller shall not be liable for or bound by any written or
unwritten statements, representatiohs, warranties, brokers' statements, or other
information pertaining to the Property furnished by Seller, any broker, any agent,
employee, or other actual (or purported) representative of Seller, or any person, unless
and only to the extent the same are expressly set forth in this Agreement.

© Seller makes no warranty with respect to any aspect of the Property,
including, without limitation, the presence of any Hazardous Materials on, above,
beneath, or discharged from the Property (or any adjoining or neighboring property) or in
any water on or under the Property.

(d) Purchaser releases Seller, the Seller-Related Parties, and their respective
successors and assigns (individually, and collectively, a "Released Party") from and
against any and all claims, damages, and causes of action which Purchaser or any of the
Purchaser-Related Parties has or may have arising from or related to any matter or thing
related to or in connection with the Property, including the value of the Property or its
suitability for Purchaser's use, the documents and information referred to herein, the
Leases, the Tenants, any construction defects, errors, or omissions in the design or
construction and any environmental conditions, whether now known or unknown,
whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, and whether or not apparent or yet to be
discovered, or which may hereafter develop (collectively, the "Claims"). Neither
Purchaser nor any of the Purchaser-Related Parties shall look to the Released Parties in
connection with the foregoing for any redress or relief. This release shall be given full
force and effect according to each of its express terms and provisions, including those
relating to unknown and unsuspected Claims. To the extent required to be operative, the
disclaimers and warranties contained herein are "conspicuous” disclaimers for purposes
of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order.

19

Page 54



(e) Purchaser has made an investigation of the facts pertaining to this
Agreement and to the Claims as Purchaser deems necessary. Purchaser understands that it
may later discover Claims or facts that may be different from, or in addition to, those that
it or any of the other Purchaser-Related Parties now knows or believes to exist regarding
the subject matter of the release contained in this Agreement, and which, if known at the
time of signing this Agreement, may have materially affected this Agreement and
Purchaser's decision to enter into it and grant the release contained in this Agreement.
Nevertheless, Purchaser intends to fully, finally, and forever settle and release all Claims
that now exist, may exist, or previously existed, as set out in the release contained in this
Section 16.04, whether known or unknown, foreseen or unforeseen, or suspected or
unsuspected, and the release given herein is and shall remain in effect as a complete
release, notwithstanding the discovery or existence of such additional or different facts.
Purchaser, on behalf of itself and on behalf of the other Purchaser-Related Parties, hereby
waives any right or Claim that might arise as a result of such different or additional
Claims or facts. Purchaser has read, and understands, the provisions of California Civil
Code Section 1542 ("Section 1542"), which provides:

"A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS THAT THE
CREDITOR OR RELEASING PARTY DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT
TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING
THE RELEASE AND THAT, IF KNOWN BY HIM OR HER, WOULD
HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS OR HER SETTLEMENT WITH
THE DEBTOR OR RELEASED PARTY."

Purchaser, on behalf of itself and of the other Purchaser-Related Parties,
expressly, knowingly, and intentionally waives any and all rights, benefits, and
protections of Section 1542 and of any other applicable state or federal statute or
common law principle limiting the scope of a general or specific release. Purchaser
hereby specifically acknowledges that: (i) Purchaser has carefully reviewed this Section
6.06 and the waiver of Section 1542; (ii) Purchaser has discussed its import with legal
counsel; and (iii) the provisions of this Section 16.04 and the waiver of Section 1542 are
a material part of this Agreement and of the consideration paid to Seller under this
Agreement.

Purchaser's Initials

® Purchaser, on its own behalf and on behalf of each of the Purchaser-
Related Parties, covenants and agrees never to sue or otherwise commence or prosecute
any action or other proceeding against any of the Released Parties, for all Claims released
pursuant to the release in this Section 16.04 (the "Release"). If any of the Purchaser-
Related Parties asserts a Claim that is contrary to the Release, Purchaser shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the Released Parties against whom such claim is asserted for
all liabilities, including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees, which are asserted
against any of the Released Parties in connection with such action or proceeding. The
Parties agree that this Section 16.04 (the "Covenant Not to Sue") may be pleaded by a
Released Party as a full and complete defense to any action or proceeding by Purchaser

20

Page 55



or any of the Purchaser-Related Parties that is contrary to the terms of the Release, and
may be asserted as a basis for abatement of, or injunction against, said action or
proceeding and as a basis for a cross-complaint for damages therein. If Purchaser or any
of the Purchaser-Related Parties breaches the Covenant Not to Sue, any Released Party
damaged thereby shall be entitled to recover not only the amount of any judgment which
may be awarded in favor of such damaged Released Party, but also any other damages,
costs, and expenses as may be incurred by such damaged Released Party, including court
costs, reasonable attorneys' fees, and all other costs and expenses, taxable or otherwise, in
preparing the defense of, defending against, or seeking and obtaining abatement of, or
injunction against, such action or proceeding, and establishing and maintaining the
applicability of this Agreement.

(2) The provisions of this Section 16.04 shall survive the Closing or the
carlier termination of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to have merged into any of
the documents executed or delivered at the Closing.

Section XV.5 No Warranty or Other Representation. Except as expressly set forth in
this Agreement to the contrary, Seller hereby disclaims all warranties of any kind or nature
whatsoever (including, without limitation, warranties of habitability and fitness for particular
purposes), whether expressed or implied including, without limitation, warranties with respect to
the Property. Except as is expressly set forth in this Agreement, including the representations and
warranties of Seller set forth herein, Purchaser acknowledges that it is not relying upon any
representation of any kind or nature made by Seller, Seller's Broker, or any of the Seller-Related
Parties, with respect to the Property, and that, in fact, except as expressly set forth in this
Agreement to the contrary, no such representations were made. To the extent required to be
operative, the disclaimers and warranties contained herein are "conspicuous" disclaimers for
purposes of any applicable law, rule, regulation, or order.

Section XV.6 Survival. The provisions of this Section 15A+tiele XV shall survive the
Closing or the earlier termination of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to have merged into
any of the documents executed or delivered at the Closing.

ARTICLE XVI
REMEDIES

Section XVI1.1Purchaser's Default. If Purchaser shall default in the observance or
performance of Purchaser's obligations under this Agreement and the Closing does not occur as a
result thereof (a "Purchaser Default"), Seller's sole and exclusive remedy shall be to retain the
Purchase Price actually deposited plus any accrued interest thereon, if any, as and for full and
complete liquidated and agreed damages for a Purchaser Default, and the parties shall be
released from further liability to each other hereunder, except for those obligations and liabilities
that are expressly stated to survive termination of this Agreement. SELLER AND
PURCHASER AGREE THAT IT WOULD BE IMPRACTICAL AND EXTREMELY
DIFFICULT TO ESTIMATE THE DAMAGES WHICH SELLER MAY SUFFER UPON
A PURCHASER DEFAULT AND THAT THE DEPOSIT AND ANY INTEREST
EARNED THEREON, AS THE CASE MAY BE, REPRESENTS A REASONABLE

21

Page 56



ESTIMATE OF THE TOTAL NET DETRIMENT THAT SELLER WOULD SUFFER
UPON A PURCHASER DEFAULT. SUCH LIQUIDATED AND AGREED DAMAGES
ARE NOT INTENDED AS A FORFEITURE OR A PENALTY WITHIN THE MEANING
OF APPLICABLE LAW, BUT ARE INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE LIQUIDATED
DAMAGES TO SELLER PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA CIVIL CODE SECTIONS
1671, 1676, AND 1677. BY PLACING ITS INITIALS BELOW, EACH PARTY
SPECIFICALLY CONFIRMS THE ACCURACY OF THE STATEMENTS MADE
ABOVE AND THE FACT THAT EACH PARTY WAS REPRESENTED BY LEGAL
COUNSEL WHO EXPLAINED, AT THE TIME THIS AGREEMENT WAS MADE, THE
MEANING, THE EFFECT, AND THE CONSEQUENCES OF THIS LIQUIDATED
DAMAGES PROVISION.

Seller's Initials Purchaser's Initials

Section XVI1.2Seller's Default. If Seller shall default in the observance or performance
of Seller's obligations under this Agreement or the Closing does not occur as a result thereof
("Seller Default™), Purchaser's sole and exclusive remedy shall be to: (a) waive such failure and
proceed to the Closing with no reduction in the Purchase Price; or (b) terminate the Agreement
and receive a refund of the Purchase Price deposited plus any accrued interest thereon. Purchaser
agrees that its failure to file suit for specific performance against Seller within thirty (30) days
after the Closing Date shall irrevocably constitute its election to proceed under option (b) hereof.
Purchaser waives all rights to specific performance or injunctive relief or other relief to cause
Seller to perform its obligations under this Agreement. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in this Agreement, in no event shall Seller be liable to Purchaser for any damages of
any kind whatsoever.

Section XV1.3Survival. The provisions of this Article XVIII shall survive the Closing or
the earlier termination of this Agreement and shall not be deemed to have merged into any of the
documents executed or delivered at the Closing.

ARTICLE XVII
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section XVIIL.1 Notices. Unless specifically stated otherwise in this Agreement, all
notices, waivers, and demands required under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered to
Purchaser, Seller, and Escrow Holder by one of the following methods:

(a) Hand delivery, whereby delivery is deemed to have occurred at the time of
delivery;

(b) A nationally recognized overnight courier company, whereby delivery is
deemed to have occurred the Business Day following deposit with the courier. Any Party
may change its address for purposes of this Section 20.01 by giving written notice as
provided in this Section 20.01.

22

Page 57



All notices and demands delivered by a Party's attorney on a Party's behalf shall be
deemed to have been delivered by said Party. Notices shall be valid only if served in the manner
provided in this Section 20.01.

Section XVIIL.2 Complete Agreement; Amendments and Modifications; Partial
Invalidity; Waivers.

(a) This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and when executed by
all Parties shall become one (1) integrated agreement enforceable on its terms. This
Agreement supersedes all prior agreements between the Parties with respect to the
Property and all discussions, understandings, offers, and negotiations with respect
thereto, whether oral or written. This Agreement shall not be amended or modified,
except in a writing signed by each Party hereto. If amended or modified as permitted by
this Section 20.02, the term "Agreement" shall thereafter be read as including all said
amendments and modifications. All exhibits that are referenced in this Agreement or
attached to it are incorporated herein and made a part hereof as if fully set forth in the
body of the document.

(b) Any term or provision of this Agreement, which is invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction will, as to that jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent
of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering invalid or unenforceable the
remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or
enforceability of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement in any other
jurisdiction. If any provision of this Agreement is so broad as to be unenforceable, the
provision shall be interpreted to be only as broad as is enforceable.

() Any waiver of any provision or of any breach of this Agreement shall be
in writing and signed by the Party waiving said provision or breach. No waiver of any
breach of any agreement or provision herein contained shall be deemed a waiver of any
preceding or succeeding breach thereof or of any other agreement or provision herein
contained. No extension of time for performance of any obligations or acts shall be
deemed an extension of the time for performance of any other obligations or acts.
Effective as of the Closing, any breaches or conditions not waived previously (including
any Title Report objections) in accordance with this Section 20.02(c) are deemed waived.

Section XVIL3 Parties; Assignment of Agreement; Successors and Assigns.

(a Purchaser may not assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement or any of
its rights or obligations hereunder or any of the direct or indirect ownership interests in
Purchaser, without first obtaining Seller's prior written consent and approval thereto,
which may be given or withheld in Seller's sole and absolute discretion.

(b) All references to Seller in this Agreement shall include Seller's assignee,
including any assignment by Seller of Seller's assignment of its interest in this Agreement
to a Qualified Intermediary under Section 20.04.

23

Page 58



(c) The terms "Party" and "Parties" include Seller, Purchaser, their
respective constituent entities, and their respective successors, assigns, and legal
representatives. In the event either Seller or Purchaser is an individual, the term "Party"
or "Parties" includes that individual's heirs.

(d) This Agreement and all its covenants, terms, and provisions shall be
binding on and inure to the benefit of each Party and its assigns.

Section XVIIL.4 Further Assurances. From the Effective Date, Seller and
Purchaser each agree to do such things, perform such acts, and make, execute, acknowledge, and
deliver such documents as may be reasonably necessary and customary to complete the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement. In particular, at the Closing and through the period
that is Thirty (30) days following the Closing, Seller and Purchaser each agree to do such things
as may be reasonably necessary with respect to the transfer of the operation of the Property,
including with respect to the Contracts and Leases, to complete the transfer of the operation of
the Property. This Section 20.05 shall survive the Closing for a period of Forty Nine Thousand
(49,000) days thereafter.

Section XVILS5 Interpretation and Construction.

(a) The Parties acknowledge that, in connection with negotiating and
executing this Agreement, each has had its own counsel and advisors and that each has
reviewed and participated in the drafting of this Agreement. The fact that this Agreement
was prepared by Seller's counsel as a matter of convenience shall have no import or
significance to the construction of this Agreement. Any uncertainty or ambiguity in this
Agreement shall not be construed against Seller because Seller's counsel prepared this
Agreement in its final form. Any rule of construction that requires any ambiguities to be
interpreted against the drafter shall not be employed in the interpretation of: (i) this
Agreement; (ii) any exhibits to this Agreement; or (iii) any document drafted or delivered
in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

(b) Any captions or headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only
and do not define or limit the scope of this Agreement.

(c) The singular of any term, including any defined term, shall include the
plural and the plural of any term shall include the singular. The use of any pronoun with
respect to gender shall include the neutral, masculine, feminine, and plural. The term
"Person" or "Persons" includes a natural person or any corporation, limited liability
company, partnership, trust, or other type of entity validly formed.

Section XVIL.6 Time Is of the Essence. The parties hereto acknowledge and agree
that, except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement, TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE for
the performance of all actions (including, without limitation, the giving of notices, the delivery
of documents and the funding of money) required or permitted to be taken under this Agreement.

Section XVIL.7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

24

Page 59



Section XVIIL.8 No Survival. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no
representations, warranties, covenants, or other obligations of Seller set forth in this Agreement
shall survive the Closing hereunder and no action based thereon shall be commenced after the
Closing.

Section XVIL.9 Attorneys' Fees and Income and Capital Gains Taxes.

(a) Seller and Purchaser each acknowledge that: (i) they have been
represented by independent counsel in connection with this Agreement; (ii) they have
executed this Agreement with the advice of such counsel; and (iii) this Agreement is the
result of negotiations between the parties hereto and the advice and assistance of their
respective counsel.

(b)  Each Party to this Agreement shall be responsible for all costs it incurs in
connection with the preparation, review, and negotiation of this Agreement and the
transactions and the Closing contemplated by this Agreement, including any attorneys' or
consultants' fees. In addition, each Party is responsible for its own income taxes and
capital gains taxes resulting from its operation of the Property and such taxes shall not be
a proration at the Closing.

(©) If any Party institutes any legal suit, action, or proceeding against the other
Party to enforce this Agreement or seeks to obtain any other relief or remedy regarding
any controversy, claim, or dispute between the Parties arising out of, relating to, or in
connection with this Agreement or the breach thereof, the prevailing Party shall be
entitled to receive, and the non-prevailing Party shall pay, in addition to all other
remedies to which the prevailing Party may be entitled, the costs and expenses incurred
by the prevailing Party in conducting the suit, action, or proceeding, including reasonable
attorneys' fees and expenses, and court costs, even if not recoverable by law (including,
without limitation, all fees, taxes, costs, and expenses incident to appellate, bankruptcy,
and post-judgment proceedings). A Party shall be deemed to have prevailed in any such
action or proceeding if such action is dismissed upon the payment by the other Party of
the sums allegedly due or the performance of obligations allegedly not complied with, or
performance of the covenant allegedly breached by it in the action, irrespective of
whether such action is prosecuted to final judgment or determination, or if such Party
obtains substantially the relief sought by it or defeats the claim by the other Party,
whether by compromise, settlement, judgment, assertion of an affirmative defense, or the
abandonment by the other Party of its claim or defense.

[SIGNATURES ON THE NEXT PAGE]

25

Page 60



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the date

first written above.
THIS SIGNATURE BLOCK NEEDS HELP

Henry J. Foppiano III, a married man and
Lynette Foppiano, a married woman
(collectively referred to as the “Seller” or the
“Foppianos”)

and

Purchaser Reclamation District No. 2044, a
reclamation district formed pursuant to the
Reclamation District Act in the Water Code
Section 50000 et seq.

(“Purchaser” or “District No. 2044

PURCHASER:
Reclamation District No. 2044

By:
Name:
Title:

SELLERS:

Henry J. Foppiano III

Lynette Foppiano

The Escrow Holder is executing this Agreement to evidence its agreement to act as
escrow holder in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

ESCROW HOLDER:
Chicago Title Company

By:
Name: Sherri Cearly
Title: Escrow Officer

26

Page 61



EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT A Full Legal Description for Property
EXHIBIT B Grant Deed for Property
27

Page 62



GRANT DEED
Page 63



RECORDING REQUESTED BY

First American Title Insurance
Company National Commercial Services

AND WHEN RECORDED MAIL DOCUMENT
AND TAX STATEMENT TO:

Reclamation District No. 2044

400 East Kettleman Lane, Suite 20-K
Lodi, California 95240

space Above This Line for Recorder’s Use Only

A.P.N.: 070-080-047 (portion). File No.:

GRANT DEED

The Undersigned Grantor(s) Declare(s): DOCUMENTARY TRANSFER TAX § .00;
CITY TRANSFER TAX $-0-, SURVEY MONUMENT FEE $

[ X ] computed on the consideration or full value of property conveyed,
OR

[ ] computed on the consideration or full value less value of liens and/or encumbrances

remaining at time of sale, [ X ] unincorporated area; [ ] City of Stockton, and

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged, Henry J. Foppiano Ill, a married man and Lynette Foppiano,
a married woman, hereby GRANTS to Reclamation District No. 2044, a
reclamation district formed pursuant to the Reclamation District Act in the
Water Code Section 50000 et seq.

the following described property in the Unincorporated Area of, County of San
Joaquin, State of California:

SEE EXHIBIT "A" ATTACHED HERETO AND MADE A PART
HEREOF FOR FULL LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Page 1 of 2

Page 64



A.P.N.: 070-080-047 (portion). File No.:

Dated: June __, 2025

Henry J. Foppiano lli

Lynette Foppiano

State of California
County of San Joaquin

On , 2025, before me, . Notary Public,
personally appeared

, who proved to me on the basis of
satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within
instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their
authorized capacity(ies). And that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),
or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

| certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the
foregoing paragraph is true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature
My Commission expires: This area for official notarial seal
Notary Name: Notary Phone:

Notary Registration Number:
County of Principal Place of Business:

Page 2 of 2

Page 65



EXHIBIT A TO SOLAR PARCEL

Page 66



Exhibit “A”
Description of
Reclamation District No. 2044 Solar Parcel

A portion of Parcel “1” (One) as described in that certain Certificate of Compliance
recorded the 17" day of June, 2022 as Document No. 2022-075744, San Joaquin
County Records, located on King Island, County of San Joaquin, State of California
and more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the Southeasterly corner of said Parcel “1” (One), said
Southeasterly corner being on the centerline of G.A. Atherton Road No. 550 (a 90-
foot wide road now known as Eight Mile Road) as described in that certain Indenture
to the County of San Joaquin, recorded on the 8" day of November, 1928 in Volume
199 of Official Records, at Page 123, San Joaquin County Records; thence along
the Southerly line of said Parcel “1” (One), being aiso said centerline,

South 89°56'35" West, a distance of 3283.00 feet; thence at right angles to said
Southerly line, North 00°03°25" West, a distance of 45.00 feet to the Northerly right-
of-way line of said Eight Mile Road, being also the True Point of Beginning,
thence continuing at right angles to said Southerly line, North 00°03'25" West, a
distance of 386.00 feet; thence at right angles to last said course,

South 89°56'35” West, a distance of 125.00 feet; thence at right angles to last said
course, South 00°03'25" East, a distance of 176.24 feet to a point herein designated
as Point “A”; thence continuing at right angles, South 00°03'25" East, a distance of
209.76 feet to said Northerly right-of-way line; thence along said Northerly right-of-
way line, North 89°56°35" East, a distance of 125.00 feet to the True Point of

Beginning, containing 1.11 acres, more or less.

Together with a 20.00 (Twenty) Foot Wide Non-Exclusive Ingress and Egress
Easement, the Centerline of which is more particularly described as follows:

Beginning at the hereinabove described Point “A”; thence along the centerline
of said 20-Foot Wide Non-Exclusive Ingress and Egress Easement on the following
3 (Three) courses:
1. North 87°30°19” West, a distance of 101.14 feet to the beginning of a tangent
curve concaved to the Southeast having a radius of 30.00 feet;
2. Thence Southwesterly 50.44 feet along said curve through a central angle of
96°20'10" to the end of curve.

RD 2044 LD 2025-28 Solar Site LD - 3.docx
5/30/2025
PAGE 1 OF 2

Page 67



3. Thence South 03°50°30" East, a distance of 182.71 feet to said Northerly
right-of-way line and being the Point of Termination.

The Sidelines of said 20-Foot Wide Non-Exclusive Ingress and Egress Easement

to be lengthened or shortened to meet at angle points and to begin on the Westerly
line of said 1.07 acre Parcel as described above and to end on said Northerly right-
of-way line of Eight Mile Road.

A plat entitled “Exhibit A-1 Description of Reclamation District No. 2044 Solar Parcel”
attached hereto is hereby made a part of this description.

As a governmental agency or public entity being party to the transaction,
Reclamation District No. 2044 is exempt from compliance with the provisions of the

California Subdivision Map Act under Sections 66426.5 and 66428 of the
Government Code.

End of Description

b7/ Sl L7 /Léwir‘;./(

Mlchael L. Quartaroli, L§ 4450

2 - %0, 2275
Date

RD 2044 LD 2025-28 Solar Site LD - 3.docx
51302025
PAGE 2 OF 2

Page 68



RECLAMATION

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLANCE
PARCEL 1"
DoC. NO. 2022—-075744

R=30.00'
L=50.44'

N87°30'18"w

EXHIBIT "A-1"
DESCRIPTION OF

DISTRICT NO. 2044 SOLAR PARCEL

176.24’

386.00°

A=96-20'10" /N _
Ve

18271 _ _ =

— — —

5350'30"E

T - —
__.-_——-—_-
_.—_-—_-—'—"—'-_
e — —

=

/
\
N
v
=
x,

_—————

POINT “A° /

1.11 ACRES

S00'03'25"E

209.76’

(' SBO'56'35"W  125.00"

K. N89'56'35"E 125.00°

NORTH

NOT TO SCALE

386.00°

CERTIFICATE OF
COMPLIANCE
PARCEL 17

ooc. NO.

2022-075744

NOO'03'25"W

SOUTHEASTERLY
CORNER OF
PARCEL "1"
PER DOC. NO.
2022—-075744

45’

NOO'03'25"W
45,00’

~J

S89°56'35"W

EIGHT

45’

MILE ROAD

= 3283.00° J\

2025-28

QUARTAROLI & ASSOCIATES

LAND SURVEYING — LAND PLANNING
(209) 239-4908
310 SUN WEST PLACE, SUITE "A”
MANTECA, CA. 95337

Page 69




FOPPIANO DEED RESTRICTION

Page 70



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND
WHEN RECORDED MAILTO:

Reclamation District No. 2029
400 East Kettleman Lane

Ste. 20-K

Lodi, CA 85240

DEED RESTRICTION

This Deed Restriction (the "Restriction") is made this day of June, 2025,
(the "Effective Date") by Henry J. Foppiano lll, a married man and Lynette Foppiano, a
married woman, (collectively the "Owner").

RECITALS

A. The Owner holds title to a parcel, designated as APN# 071-080-47 [NEED TO
UPDATE AFTER SPLIT], in San Joaquin County ("County"). The legal description of that
parcel is set forth on the attached Exhibit "A-I". Reclamation District No. 2044
{"District"), also known as King Island, holds title to the parcel designated as APN #071-
190-03. The legal description of that parcel is set forth in the attached Exhibit "A-2".
Exhibits A-l and A-2 are incorporated herein by this reference and referred to as parcel
A-l and A-2, respectively.

B. The Owner has requested a building permit from the County to erect a Photo
Electric Solar Generation Facility (the "Utility Facility") on parcel A-l to benefit and serve
the utility needs of parcel A-2, which includes providing electricity to the District's
discharge pumps and related reclamation infrastructure. The Owner has agreed to sell
to District Parce! A-l upon which the Utility Facility will be constructed and located. The
terms and conditions of that sale, executed on , 2025, are
detailed in the attached Exhibit "A-3", incorporated herein by this reference, and
referred to as the "Solar Facility MOU".

c. The County is willing to issue the requested building permit for the Utility Facility and
grant the appropriate entitlement to allow the Utility Facility (an accessory use) on
parcel A-l for the benefit of parcel A-2 during the term of the Solar Facility MOU and so
long as the Utility Facility on parcel A-l operates as a Utility Facility and benefits and
services parcel A-2 as generally described herein.

D. The County will only permit, allow and grant the entitlement for the Utility Facility on
parcel A-l to be for the benefit of parcel A-2 if the Solar Facility MOU is not terminated

or otherwise ends, or if the Utility Facility on parcel A-I does not benefit and service
parcel A-2.

Rec. District 2044 — Foppiano Solar Facility Deed Restrictions

Page 71



NOW, THEREFORE, the Owner hereby restricts the use of the Utility Facility on the
Leased Parcel which is a part of parcel A-2 as follows:

1 Recitals. The above Recitals are true and correct and are hereby incorporated
herein.

2 Effects of Transfer on Entitlement to Allow Accessory Use. The County provides
the appropriate entitlement to only permit an accessory use on Parcel A-l for the Solar
Utility Facility to benefit and serve the utility needs of parcel A-2, which includes the
District's discharge pumps and related reclamation infrastructure, so long as the Solar
Facility MOU remains in place and the Utility Facility on parcel A-l is utilized to benefit
and service the Parcel A-2. At such time as either parcel is sold, transferred, or otherwise
alienated or hypothecated to any other person or entity, without maintaining the Solar
Facility Lease, then this Restriction, and the allowed accessory use entitlement, shall
cease to exist and shall no longer be a right or obligation of either parcel. Accordingly,
the Utility Facility shall be disconnected and severed from parcel A-2 upon the
cancellation or termination of the Solar Facility MOU, where after the Utility Facility shall
only be used, if at all, for the benefit of the parcel upon which it is located.

3 Utility Facility. The Utility Facility shall be limited to generating electricity for
parcels A-l and A-2 and shall not generate electricity for any other parcel.

4  Transfer Restriction. At such time as either parcel A-l or A-2 is sold, transferred,
or otherwise alienated or hypothecated to any other person or entity, without
maintaining the Solar Facility MOU, then the entitlement allowing the accessory use on
parcel A-l for the Utility Facility to benefit and service parcel A-2 shall cease to exist.

5 Termination. This Restriction shall automatically terminate upon the cessation of
the entitlement aliowing the accessory use on parcel A-I for the Utility Facility to benefit
and service parcel A-2. At the termination of the entitlement, both parcels shall then be
governed by the existing prescribed rules regulation and requirements for occupancy
and use of the parcels including, but not limited to, energy generation and transmission.

6 Obligations to Run with the Land. The rights and obligations created under this
Restriction shall be appurtenant to the respective parcels and shall run with the land
and inure to the benefit and use of the respective party and any successor, owner or
owners, and their successors and assigns.

7 Binding Effect. This Restriction shall bind and inure to the benefit of the
respective heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the Owner hereto.

8 Severability. In the event any term or provision of this Restriction shall be held
to be unenforceable for any reason whatsoever by any court of competent jurisdiction,
such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other term or provision
hereof.

Rec. District 2044 — Foppiano Solar Facility Deed Restrictions

Page 72



9 Captions. None of the captions of the sections of this Restriction shall be
construed as a limitation upon the language of the sections, said captions having been
inserted as a guide and partial index and not as a complete index of the contents of such
sections.

10 Further Assurances. The Owner shall execute, deliver, and record this Restriction
and shall take all necessary actions to effectuate the purposes of the Restriction and to
perfect the rights granted hereunder.

11 Governing Law. This Restriction shall be governed by, interpreted under,
construed by, and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of California,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Deed Restriction as of
the Effective Date.

OWNERS

By:

Henry J. Foppiano IlI

By:

Lynette Foppiano

Rec. District 2044 — Foppiano Solar Facility Deed Restrictions

Page 73



	RD 2044 July 22 2024 Draft Agenda arc v3 7.16.2025.pdf
	2025-7.11 Agenda Packet for 7.15 meeting (1).pdf



